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MEETING AGENDA

f the Worker Area, Lam Thao Fertilizers and Chemicals JSC — Hung Son Town, Lam
Phu Tho Province (3 km from the company's headquarters).

Time

- Content

7:30 - 8:30

Welcommg delegates and company shareholders:
- Welcome delegates and company shareholders.
- Register, verify sharecholder eligibility, and distribute AGM documents to
shareholders

8:30-9:00

Openmg of the General Meeting:

Lag salute and declaration of the opening;

- Approval of the shareholder eligibility verification report and announcement of
the conditions for conducting the General Meeting of Shareholders in accordance
with the Law and the Company's Charter;

- Introduction of the Presidium, Secretariat, and Vote Counting Committee,
followed by seeking approval from the General Meeting of Shareholders;

- Approval of the AGM agenda and working regulations of the General Meeting;

9:00 -10:00

The Board of Directors, the Supervisory Board, and the Executive Board present the

following contents:

- Report of the Executive Board on the business performance in 2024 and the
business plan for 2025.

- Report of the Board of Directors on activities in 2024 and orientations for 2025

- Report on the activities of the Supervisory Board.

- Summary presentation of the Company's audited financial statements.

- Presentation of proposals seeking shareholder approval on agenda items at the
General Meeting.

- Election of the Board of Directors and the Supervisory Board for the 2025-2030
term (including the election proposal, candidate list, election regulations, etc.)

10:00 - 10:15

Conducting the Election of the Board of Directors and the Supervisory Board for
- Instructions on voting procedures and ballot marking.

- Shareholders cast their votes for the election of the Board of Directors and the
Supervisory Board.

- Vote counting process

Break: 15 min

utes

10:30 - 10:45

Discussion on the agenda items submitted for approval at the General Meeting
of Shareholders and responses to shareholder inquiries

Luu y: Tét ca tai ligu

lién quan dén Dai héi déng cé dong thuong nién 2025 sé duwgc phdt tai cude hop cho c6 dong, dong théi cong b
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The Chairman of the General Meeting requests voting opinions from the

General Meeting of Shareholders on the presented matters:

- Report of the Executive Board on the business performance in 2024 and the
business plan for 2025;

- Report of the Board of Directors on activities in 2024 and orientation for 2025;

- Report on the activities of the Supervisory Board;

- Proposal for selecting an audit firm to conduct the financial statement audit for

10:45-11:00 2025;

- Proposal on other matters of the General Meeting: Proposal for approval of the
audited financial statements for 2024; Profit distribution plan for 2024; Business
plan for 2025; Remuneration for the Board of Directors, Supervisory Board,
Corporate Governance Officer, and Secretariat Team in 2024, and the
remuneration plan for these positions in 2025;

- Other related matters under the authority of the General Meeting of Shareholders

Announcement of the Election Results for the Board of Directors and Supervisory

11:00—11:15 | Board for the 2025-2030 Term; ' _

Newly Elected Members of the Board of Directors and Supervisory Board Introduce

Themselves to the General Meeting.

Closing of the General Meeting
- Approval of the Minutes and Resolutions of the General Meeting of

11:15-11:30 Shareholders;

- Declaration of the Closing of the General Meeting;
- Flag Salute

Lurw §: Tét ca tai liéu lien quan dén Dai héi déng c6 déng thuomg nién 2025 sé duge phdt tai cude hop cho 6 dong, dong thoi cong b
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LAM THAO FERTILIZERS AND SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM
CHEMICALS JOINT STOCK COMPANY Independence — Freedom - Happiness

e — L

Phu Tho, 21" March, 2025

WORKING REGULATIONS
ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS 2025

. Pursuant to the Enterprise Law No. 59/2020/QH14 passed by the National
Assembly of the Socialist Republic of Viemam on June 17, 2020, and guiding
documents;

. Pursuant to the Securities Law No. 54/2019/QH14 passed by the National
Assembly of the Socialist Republic of Vietnam on November 26, 2019, and

guiding documents;
_ Pursuant to the Charter on the Organization and Operation of Lam Thao

Fertilizers and Chemicals Joint Stock Company

The Board of Directors respectfully submits to the General Meeting of
Shareholders for approval of the Working Regulations at the 2025 Annual General

Meeting as follows:
.  GENERAL PROVISIONS

. This regulation stipulates the procedures for organizing the 2025 Annual

General Meeting of Shareholders of Lam Thao Fertilizers and Chemicals JSC;
the rights and obligations of shareholders attending the Meeting. Shareholders
owning the Company’s shares and participants in the Meeting are responsible
for complying with the provisions of this Regulation.
The General Meeting Organizing Committee will send the meeting invitation
and related documents to the shareholders' registered addresses with the
Company. At the same time, all meeting materials will be uploaded to the
Company's website (https://supelamthao.vn). Shareholders are encouraged to
visit the website to download and review the documents in advance. They may
submit written feedback to the Organizing Committee for compilation or discuss
their input directly during the General Meeting of Shareholders.

. The Annual General Meeting of Shareholders shall proceed when shareholders
representing more than 50% of the total voting shares are present.

Shareholders and their representatives attending the meeting must sit in the
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designated positions or areas assigned by the Meeting Organizing Committee.
Smoking is prohibited in the meeting hall; private conversations are not allowed,

and mobile phones must be set to silent mode during the meeting.

RIGHTS AND OBLIGATIONS OF SHAREHOLDERS ATTENDING
THE GENERAL MEETING

Rights of Shareholders Attending the Meeting:

Shareholders and shareholder representatives listed in the shareholder registry as
of March 14, 2025, are entitled to attend the General Meeting of Shareholders
(GMS).

Shareholders who are unable to attend the GMS may authorize another
individual to represent them at the meeting. However, the authorized
representative is not permitted to delegate this authority to a third party.
Shareholders and shareholder representatives arriving late to the meeting may
still register upon arrival and exercise their voting rights thereafter. However,
any voting rights exercised prior to their arrival will remain unaffected.
Obligations of Shareholders Attending the Meeting:

Shareholders attending the General Meeting must bring their meeting invitation,
identity card or citizen ‘dentification card, and a power of attorney (if
authorized) to present to the Shareholder Eligibility Verification Committee.
Each shareholder will receive a voting card containing their full name,
shareholder ID, and the number of shares they own or represent.

Comply with the regulations outlined in this working protocol, adhere to the
directives of the Chairperson, and respect the outcomes of the meeting;

Cover their own travel, accommodation, and other personal expenses during the
meeting;

Complete and submit voting ballots for the matters discussed at the General

Meeting to the Vote Counting Committee.

VOTING ON MATTERS AT THE GENERAL MEETING

Principles:

All matters on the agenda of the General Meeting must be discussed and voted
on openly by raising the Voting Card.

The Voting Card is issued by the Company, stamped with the official seal, and

distributed to shareholders or their representatives attending the General
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Meeting. The Voting Card clearly states the shareholder's full name, shareholder
ID, and the number of shares with voting rights they hold.

Voting Method:

Shareholders or their representatives shall vote (Agree, Disagree, or No
Opinion) on each matter by directly raising their Voting Card at the General
Meeting.

During the voting process, shareholders who agree will raise their Voting Cards
high. The Vote Counting Committee members will record the shareholder ID
and corresponding number of votes in favor. Similarly, under the Chairperson's
direction, shareholders who disagree or have no opinion will raise their Voting
Cards accordingly.

Immediately after completing the voting process for the presented matters, the
Vote Counting Committee will proceed with vote counting and announce the
results before the General Meeting.

Shareholders must fully complete, sign, and clearly write their names on the
Voting Ballot before submitting it to the Vote Counting Committee for

processing.

Voting Rules:

 Each common share corresponds to one voting right. As of the shareholder

record date (March 14, 2025), the total number of voting shares of the company
is 112,856,400 common shares.

The following matters shall be approved if they receive the affirmative votes of
shareholders representing at least 63% of the total voting rights of all

shareholders present and voting at the meeting, including:

The type of shares and the total number of shares of each type;
Changes in the company's business lines and operational sectors;
Changes in the company's management structure;

[nvestment projects or asset sales valued at 35% or more of the company's total

assets, as recorded in the latest financial report;
Reorganization or dissolution of the company.

Other matters shall be approved if they receive the affirmative votes of

shareholders representing more than 50% of the total voting rights of all

3



shareholders present and voting at the meeting.

3.4. The election of Board of Directors (BOD) and Supervisory Board (SB) members
shall be conducted by secret ballot using the cumulative voting method, as
stipulated in Clause 3, Article 148 of the Enterprise Law, and guided by the

Election Regulations.
IV. DISCUSSIONS AT THE GENERAL MEETING

- Discussions shall only take place within the designated time frame and must be
limited to matters outlined in the agenda of the Annual General Meeting of

Shareholders.
. Shareholders or shareholder representatives wishing to speak must register their

é : comments or questions by filling out the Feedback Form and submitting it to the
gg Meeting Secretariat.

PE P! . The Meeting Secretariat will organize shareholder questions in the order of
’Cﬁf{ _ registration and forward them to the Chairing Panel.

@ _ Based on the compiled and arranged questions from the Meeting Secretariat, the

Chairperson or a designated panel member will respond to shareholders' inquiries.
v. RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE CHAIRPERSON

|. Conduct the meeting in accordance with the approved agenda, rules, and
regulations adopted by the General Meeting of Shareholders. The Chairperson
shall operate based on the principle of democratic centralism and make decisions
by majority vote.

2. Guide the meeting discussions, collect votes on matters within the agenda, and
address any related issues that arise during the meeting.

3. The Chairperson has the authority to take necessary measures to ensure the
meeting proceeds in an orderly, structured, and effective manner, in alignment
with the approved agenda and reflecting the majority's views.

4. The Chairperson’s decisions on procedural matters, order of discussion, or any
unexpected situations arising outside the agenda shall be final and binding.

The Chairperson has the right to:
- Require all attendees to undergo security checks or follow other necessary

security measures.
- Request law enforcement or authorized personnel to maintain order and expel

individuals who disrupt the meeting, obstruct proceedings, or refuse to comply
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with security checks.
- Postpone the meeting—even if a quorum is present—or change the venue under
the following circumstances:
+ The venue does not have enough seats for all attendees.
+ Communication equipment at the venue is insufficient for effective
participation, discussion, or voting.
+ A participant engages in disruptive behavior that prevents the meeting from
proceeding fairly and lawfully.
- The postponement period must not exceed 3 days from the originally scheduled

meeting date.
VL. RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE MEETING SECRETARIAT

1. Accurately and truthfully record the entire proceedings of the General Meeting,
including discussions, decisions, and any matters approved or noted by
shareholders and shareholder representatives in the Meeting Minutes.

7. Draft and finalize the Resolutions on matters approved during the General

Meeting.
VIL. RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE VOTING COMMITTEE

1. Count and verify shareholder votes on matters presented at the General Meeting
and report the results to the Secretariat.

7 Guide shareholders on the election procedures for the Board of Directors (BOD)
and the Supervisory Board (SB), and oversee the vote counting process.

3. Ensure the accuracy of voting results and election ballots during the 2025
Annual General Meeting of Sharcholders

4. TInstruct shareholders on completing voting ballots, collect them, and compile the
results to provide a basis for the Secretariat to finalize the Meeting Minutes.

5 Review and report any violations of voting regulations or complaints regarding
voting results to the General Meeting.

6. Maintain honesty, transparency, and accountability throughout the vote counting

process and take full responsibility for the final results.

VIIL. HANDLING CASES WHERE THE GENERAL MEETING OF
SHAREHOLDERS (GMS) IS UNSUCCESSFUL

1. If the required number of shareholders is not met within thirty (30) minutes from
the scheduled opening time of the General Meeting of Shareholders (GMS), as

2



stipulated in Section 1 of this Regulation, the convener shall announce the
cancellation of the meeting.

>, The GMS must be reconvened within thirty (30) days from the date of the first
meeting. The second meeting shall only proceed if shareholders attending
represent at least 33% of the total voting shares.

3. If the second meeting fails to proceed due to an insufficient number of attendees
within thirty (30) minutes from the scheduled opening time, a third meeting may
be convened within twenty (20) days from the scheduled date of the second
meeting. In this case, the meeting shall proceed regardless of the total number of
yoting shares represented by attending shareholders, and it shall be considered

valid with the authority to decide on all matters proposed for approval at the GMS.
IX. MINUTES OF THE GENERAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS

All contents of the General Meeting of Shareholders must be recorded in the
Meeting Minutes by the Secretariat. The Meeting Minutes must be read by the
Secretariat and approved by the shareholders and their representatives before the

closing of the meeting.

The Meeting Minutes, the appendix listing the registered shareholders attending
the meeting, the approved resolutions, and related documents must be kept at the
company's headquarters.

The above constitutes the full Working Regulations of the 2025 Annual General
Meeting of Shareholders of Lam Thao Fertilizers and Chemicals Joint Stock

Company, submitted for shareholders’ and representatives' consideration and

approval.
Respectfully./.
Recipients: ON BEHALF OF THE
- Company shareholders; 3O OF DIRECTORS

- Members of the Board of Directors, OB
Executive Board, and Supervisory
Board;

- Archived at the Office, Human N e
Resources Department, and \

Secretarial.

NGUYEN QUOC ANH



LAM THAO FERTILIZERS AND SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM
CHEMICALS JOINT STOCK COMPANY Independence - Freedom - Happiness

No: 21/BC-SPLT Phu Tho, 11" March, 2025

REPORT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

ON 2024 ACTIVITIES AND 2025 ORIENTATION
(At the 2025 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders)

L. REPORT ON ACTIVITIES IN 2024

1. Characteristics of the situation in 2024

A. Advantages:

The company's management and administration in 2024 were effective and
efficient. With financial resources and comprehensive business strategy oriented
toward specific goals, the company achieved impressive results in revenue and profit.

Through unity and determination from the entire staff and employees, the
company's leadership focused its intelligence and maximized all resources and
competitive advantages to overcome difficulties and enhance business performance.

The company's products have maintained their brand reputation, continuously
improving quality, diversifying types, packaging designs, aligning with consumer
trends, and fitting the current green, environmentally friendly industry.

The company has built a fair, healthy, and competitive business environment;
implemented flexible policies and mechanisms to attract increasingly effective sales,
meeting market demand and earning the trust and love of farmers.

B. Disadvantages:

Political instability and armed conflicts in several countries have negatively
affected all aspects of business operations for companies in general and the company
in particular.

Climate change, natural disasters, storms, floods, and other events occurring
frequently in the country have caused severe damage to people and property in many
Northern provinces, significantly impacting the company's fertilizer consumption.

The prices and supply of raw materials used in fertilizer production have been
highly volatile and unpredictable (particularly the main materials for NPK production).
Additionally, the supply of Apatite is increasingly scarce, with declining quality (the



average P,Os nutrient content decreased by 0.6

production output, significantly affecting the company's bu

2. Achieved results

Business Results in 2024 Compare

8% in 2024), leading to reduced

siness performance.

d to the Shareholders' Meeting Plan

(Summary):
Unit: Billion VND
Plan assigned by Percentage
t 1 ;!
No. Categories e Gt-anera Implementation ()
Meeting of compared to
Shareholders AGM Plan
1 Sale§ revenue and service 3 400 3.599,95 105.8
provision
2| pre-tax profit 136 216,19 1589
B 3 | State budget contribution 49,505 85,89 173,5

3. Assessment of the performance of the Board of Directors; meetings and
decisions of the Board of Directors in 2024

With the goal of determinedly implementing the Resolution of the 2024 Annual
General Meeting of Shareholders, the Board of Directors (BOD) actively and
comprehensively carried out activities across all areas to ensure effectiveness and
compliance with the Company's Charter and the BOD's Operational Regulations.

The BOD held 6 direct meetings and regularly sought opinions from BOD
members to promptly address tasks according to assigned progress. All discussion
topics and requests for opinions fell under the BOD's authority. All BOD members
participated, providing direct feedback, with the presence of the Supervisory Board. All
meetings resulted in resolutions and decisions issued promptly according to regulations,
effectively enhancing the Company's operations while safeguarding shareholders' legal
rights and interests.

The Company's Secretariat successfully advised and assisted the BOD in
receiving, processing documents, ‘nformation, and coordinating work between the
BOD and the Executive Board, the BOD and the Supervisory Board, as well as between
individuals, departments, and related functional units, ensuring timely and high-quality
task fulfillment.

The Secretariat collaborated with functional departments to continue reviewing,
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drafting, issuing new documents, supplementing, and amending internal management
documents to create a legal framework for implementation; preparing all content,
programs, and documents for the 2024 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders
accurately and promptly. It also coordinated the planning and organization of BOD
meetings according to the practical requirements of each meeting’s content.

The Secretariat closely coordinated with the Company's Information Disclosure
Officer to implement the publication of information according to legal regulations,
effectively fulfilling the tasks of preparing annual reports, governance reports, and
periodic reports as required.

Shareholder Relations: The company maintained good relations with
shareholders, ensuring timely and accurate information disclosure.

4. Evaluation of the Board of Directors on the activities of the Executive
Board

In 2024, the Executive Board demonstrated a high sense of responsibility and
decisiveness in implementing the business production plan and effectively executing
the strategic direction set by the Board of Directors, helping the Company achieve
impressive business results and exceed all assigned targets.

Areas such as investment and construction, equipment lines, technology, products,
production, finance, procurement of raw materials, environment, occupational safety,
and wages were all prioritized and addressed to meet work requirements at each stage.

Throughout 2024, the Executive Board made significant efforts to regulate
policies, especially in sales and product development, to meet the demand for
transitioning from inorganic fertilizers to organic ones. Management and operational
measures were strengthened to achieve the highest efficiency in business production.
Alongside adjustments in sales mechanisms, product marketing, and promotion, the
Company maintained stable production, effectively managed production standards,
controlled inventory levels of raw materials, minimized costs, created jobs, increased
employee income, and ensured safety in terms of personnel, assets, environment, and
labor hygiene.

The Board of Directors acknowledges and commends the Executive Board for its
outstanding performance, providing fundamental solutions with core value to stabilize

and promote the Company’s sustainable growth and development.
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IL. ORIENTATION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS’ ACTIVITIES IN 2025
1. Business production tasks for 2025:

- Industrial production value (at current prices): 3,801 billion VND

_ Sales revenue and service provision: 3,545 billion VND

- Pre-tax profit: 205 billion VND

- State budget contribution: 63.431 billion VND

- Basic construction investment: 124.141 billion VND

2. General development strategy

With the overarching goal of comprehensively focusing on a sustainable
development strategy oriented towards green agriculture that is environmentally
friendly, the Company continues to strengthen research and development of organic
fertilizer products of natural origin, while applying and improving advanced
manufacturing technologies to enhance product quality, while minimizing negative
impacts on the ecological environment, meeting the needs of farmers and both domestic
and international markets.

Priority is given to enhancing the marketing of Lam Thao fertilizer products,
particularly ensuring effective market development for new product lines; Focusing on
developing a line of microbial products to penetrate the market alongside the
Company's traditional fertilizer products effectively.

Consolidating and developing the Company's brand through various channels,
digital platforms, media agencies, public communication, agencies, specialized
agricultural organizations, farmers, rural areas, and the Company's distribution and
consumption customer system.

Strengthening management work, increasing the support of scientists, regularly
researching, and applying scientific and technical topics to practical production to
reduce the consumption of raw materials, lower product costs, and adapt to market
trends.

Continuing to improve the Company's internal regulations and procedures.
Strengthening business management and debt management to enhance business
efficiency.

3. Solutions

In 2025, the Board of Directors and Executive Board will continue to direct and

lead the company to leverage its existing strengths while overcoming difficulties and
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shortcomings to promptly meet market demands and trends, further promoting effective
production and business operations. Some specific directive solutions include:
3.1. Regarding Production, Business, and Market

Improve the management of all aspects of production and business activities,
with special attention to production management at units to ensure compliance with
current standards and procedures; implement product-specific specialization for each
unit.

Inspect and closely monitor efficiency, minimize costs, reduce product costs, use
energy efficiently, optimize processes, and collaborate with other businesses to support
product consumption under mutually beneficial models to maintain existing markets
and expand new domestic and export markets.

Research and develop new fertilizer product lines suitable for different crop
characteristics from K,SOs-based materials; Continue to research high-quality
fertilizers to meet market competition and help farmers use fertilizers effectively,
selecting authentic, safe products to achieve high farming efficiency and protect soil
resources and ecological environments.

Regularly and intensively inspect and monitor the implementation of safety,
industrial hygiene, fire prevention, environmental protection, and asset and human
protection regulations.

Strengthen market forecasting and predictions to develop reasonable reserve
plans, reduce inventory, minimize capital stagnation, and ensure sufficient products for

market needs at each stage.
Promote and standardize communication, advertising, branding, and brand

positioning activities t0 enhance competitiveness, cooperation, and connectivity
between the Company and its customers. Accurately capture and analyze market
demands to develop highly effective key products. Implement advertising, exhibitions,
fairs, conferences, and product introductions to reach a broad audience of consumers,
partners, and investors both domestically and internationally.

Focus on reviewing, adjusting, and supplementing policies, regulations, and

internal procedures to align with current legal provisions and the Company's business

strategy.
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Perfect appropriate sales policies, develop a professional sales system and
distribution network. Seek domestic and international partners to cooperate in the
production and business of products manufactured and exported by the Company.

3.2. Regarding Human Resources and Workforce Training

Comprehensive and synchronized human resource management based on
consolidating core corporate cultural values; aiming to build a high-quality workforce
that encompasses all valuable factors to meet the requirements of tasks in the new
situation.

Standardizing training work towards consistency, quality, and efficiency based on
reviewing and updating training programs suitable for business operation requirements;
Focusing on innovating training, fostering, and recruiting high-quality personnel in
industries the Company needs and lacks to promptly meet the requirements of each
stage and promote the Company's development. Ensuring improved quality in training,
balancing between basic training and specific specialized training, linking training with
application and usage.

Researching, considering, and developing policies on labor, wages, bonuses, and
welfare towards linking business performance with productivity and employee
contributions through evaluation standards currently applied effectively at various
companies.

3.3. Regarding Development Investment

Effectively exploit the projects that have been completed and handed over for use
in 2024 (Renovation of the exhaust gas treatment system of Acid Line No. 1 - Acid
Enterprise; Investment in renovating Absorption Tower 1 of Acid Line No. 2 - Acid
Enterprise; Investment in purchasing a 10-ton Crane - Supe 1 Enterprise; Investment in
building Raw Material and Product Storage Warehouse at the Company...); accelerate
the progress of projects currently undergoing contractor selection, contract signing, and
implementation of procurement and on-site construction (Investment in building a SOP
production line with a capacity of 20,000 tons/year; Renovation of the circulating pond;
Construction of sales areas and product introduction centers; Procurement of gas
storage tanks) and projects that are in the investment preparation stage (Construction
of the Company’s office building; Renovation of the Sulfur Burner of Acid 1 - Acid
Enterprise; Construction of an aluminum sulfate (PAC) production line with a capacity

of 10,000 tons/year;.. iJ




3.4. In terms of financial work

_ Standardize the financial accounting and management accounting information
system to create a solid foundation for making business decisions, along with preparing
financial reports that comply with advanced, modern financial accounting standards in
the region and internationally.

- Define and classify cost analysis, set norms for material consumption to tightly
control expenses, thereby developing appropriate financial regulations and plans that
closely align with actual requirements. Strictly manage assets, capital sources, and
utilize and develop capital effectively and transparently.

3.5. Shareholder Relations and Labor Production Emulation Movements

Maintain close relationships and ensure the legitimate rights of shareholders;
Continue to enhance the reputation, image, and brand value of the Company.
Launch and spread powerful messages about innovation throughout the entire
Company’s staff and employees to boost morale, foster a sense of collective
responsibility, encourage creative labor, and propel the Company forward.

CONCLUSION

The economy in 2025 is expected to experience significant improvement, and
the Vietnamese fertilizer market is anticipated to maintain stability in supply thanks to
increasingly improved domestic production capacity. However, alongside these
opportunities and the heavy tasks ahead, the Company's staff and employees must
continue to make even greater efforts to successfully accomplish the Company's
business and production objectives in 2025.

The Company's Board of Directors respectfully reports to the General Meeting
and sincerely hopes to continue receiving contributions and support from esteemed
shareholders, providing the Company with new motivation and resources for
sustainable development.

Wishing all of you good health, happiness, and much success.

Sincerely thank you./.




LAM THAO FERTILIZERS AND SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM
CHEMICALS JOINT STOCK COMPANY Independence - Freedom - Happiness

No: 85/SPLT-KHVT Lam Thao, 20" February, 2025

REPORT
SUMMARY OF PRODUCTION AND BUSINESS ACTIVITIES IN 2024

ORIENTATION AND TASKS FOR 2025
(Documents for the General Meeling of Shareholders
Lam Thao Fertilizers and Chemicals Joint Stock Company)

PART I
SUMMARY OF PRODUCTION AND BUSINESS ACTIVITIES IN 2024

I- General Situation

[n 2024, the production and business activities of Lam Thao Fertilizers and
Chemicals Joint Stock Company experienced the following advantages and
difficulties:

1. Advantages

_ The leadership, along with all employees of the Company, have shown
unity, solidarity, and consensus, continuing to maintain stable production and
business operations, ensuring steady employment and improving income for
workers. The employees trust in the sustainable development of the Company.

- The Company's products have maintained their brand reputation, are
diverse in types, and the Company continues to invest in research to bring new
products to the market, maintaining and enhancing quality, which is trusted by
consumers.

- The Company regularly receives close leadership and guidance from the
Vietnam National Chemical Group, as well as support and favorable conditions
from various departments, agencies, and authorities of Phu Tho Province and
Lam Thao District. It also enjoys strong support from farmers nationwide for the
Company's products.

2. Difficulties

7.1. Difficulties Due to the Impact of Global Economic Factors

2024 was affected by various complex factors such as:

_ Political developments (the war between Russia and Ukraine, the conflict
between Israel and Hamas, armed conflicts in the Red Sea, trade wars between
the U.S. and countries like China, Canada, Mexico, etc.) impacted the socio-

economic development of many countries, continuing to cause unpredictable
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and complicated fluctuations in the prices and supply of raw materials used in
fertilizer production.

_ Climate change developments: Natural disasters, storms (such as
Typhoon No. 3 Yagi), floods, etc., occurred more frequently and with greater
destructive power, causing severe damage to people and property in many
northern localities and the economy. This has significantly affected the
Company's fertilizer consumption.

7.2 Difficulties Regarding Raw Materials and Production Costs

- The prices of key raw materials for NPK fertilizer production fluctuated
continuously with large margins, significantly affecting customer sentiment and
demand for fertilizers.

- The shortage and declining quality of apatite ore (the P,Os nutrient
content in 2024 decreased by an average of 0.68%) used for producing
superphosphate led to reduced production output, negatively impacting the
Company's production and business results.

Thanks to the attention and guidance from various authorities, from the
Central Government to local levels, the Vietnam National Chemical Group, and
the trust of partners and consumers; along with comprehensive management
solutions, the application of science and technology, and the streamlining of
product

II- Results of Production and Business Activities and Basic Construction

Investment in 2024

1. Business and Production Activities

1.1. Industrial Production Value at Current Prices: 3,380 billion VND,
reaching 102% of the annual plan, a decrease of 4% compared to the same
period. The total fertilizer production output reached 823,929 tons, equivalent to
101% of the annual plan, an increase of 4% compared to the same period. Main

products produced include:

- Superphosphate: 425,319 tons (including 6,312 tons of bio-superphosphate)

_ NPK: 391,643 tons (including 17,208 tons of high-content, bio-fertilizer)

- Organic Mineral Fertilizer: 6,967 tons (including 866 tons of bio-organic
mineral fertilizer)

- Sulfuric Acid: 145,790 tons

1.2. Revenue from Sales and Service Provision: 3,600 billion VND,
reaching 106% of the annual plan, equivalent to 102% of the same period. The
total fertilizer sales volume reached 603,230 tons, equivalent to 07% of the
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annual plan, an increase of 3% compared to the same period. Main products sold
include:

- Superphosphate: 215,240 tons (including 5,406 tons of bio-superphosphate)

_ Various NPK Types: 382,186 tons (including 14,052 tons of high-content,
bio-fertilizer)

- Organic Mineral Fertilizer: 5,804 tons (including 837 tons of bio-organic
mineral fertilizer)

- Sulfuric Acid: 2,055 tons

Other chemical products such as single alum, double alum, sodium
bisulfite, sodium fluoride, etc., were produced and supplied adequately to meet
customer demand.

1.3. Pre-Tax Profit: Reached 216.19 billion VND, equivalent to 159% of
the annual plan, an increase of 16% compared to the same period.

1.4. Amount Contributed to the State Budget: Reached 85.89 billion VND,
equivalent to 170% of the annual plan, an increase of 136% compared to the
same period.

1.5. Total Average Number of Employees: 1,836 people, with an average
monthly income of 17.25 million VND per worker. The Company continues to
arrange labor in reasonable positions, enabling workers to maximize their
capabilities and improve labor productivity.

2. Basic Construction Investment

7 1. The value of basic construction investment in 2024 reached: 71.114
billion VND (85% of the annual plan), including:

_ Construction value: 15.886 billion VND.

- Equipment value: 42.433 billion VND.

2.2. The Company’s basic construction investment activities in 2024
primarily focused on implementing projects carried over from 2023, preparing
investment procedures, approving projects, selecting contractors, and signing
contracts for several new projects under the 2024 investment plan approved by
the Group, specifically:

- Projects completed, accepted, handed over, and put into use in 2024:
Renovation of the exhaust gas treatment system for Acid Line No.l - Acid
Enterprise; Investment in renovating Absorption Tower 1 of Acid Line No.2 -
Acid Enterprise; Investment in purchasing a 10-ton crane - Supe 1 Enterprise;
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Construction of raw material and product storage at the Company; Purchase of
02 passenger cars; Purchase of an ambulance and a fire truck.

- Projects in the process of contractor selection, contract signing,
procurement, and on-site construction: Construction of SOP production line with
a capacity of 20,000 tons/year; Renovation of the circulation pond; Construction
of a sales and product display area; Purchase of gas storage tanks.

- Projects in the preparation phase for investment: Construction of the
Company’s office building; Renovation of the sulfur-burning furnace for Acid
Line 1 - Acid Enterprise; Construction of the aluminum sulfate (PAC)
production line with a capacity of 10,000 tons/year; ...

3. Sales Operations

- Organized the launch of specialized fertilizers for Coffee plants, Forestry
plants, and Urban Agricultural Fertilizers, and announced new packaging
designs for Lam Thao fertilizer products.

- Effectively implemented sales operations, offering flexible policies and
customer care tailored to specific stages and business conditions, gaining
consensus from distributors; organized special promotional ~programs,
particularly the "Scan the code to win money, gold,.." program when
purchasing Lam Thao fertilizers (Organic Mineral Fertilizer, Bio-Organic
Mineral Fertilizer, Bio-Superphosphate, High-Content NPK, Bio-NPK).

- Held Customer Conferences; organized customer appreciation programs
in Phu Quoc and arranged learning tours for customers to the United States and
Indonesia, promoting the Company's brand to partners and consumers.

- Collaborated with the Department of Culture, Sports, and Tourism of Phu
Tho Province to organize the Hung Vuong Supe Lam Thao Volleyball Cup - the
main sponsor for the period 2025-2030.

4. Production, Science and Technology, Research and Development,
Quality Management

- Implemented solutions to maintain and improve the quality of the
Company's fertilizer products.

_ Promoted the application of scientific and technical advancements to
enhance product quality, management efficiency, and process control
effectiveness: Notably, the Company successfully organized production and
launched new products designed for Coffee plants, Forestry plants, and Urban
Agricultural Fertilizers.

5. Organization and Employee Welfare
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- Arranged and allocated labor reasonably to meet the requirements of
production and business activities.

-‘Effectively took care of employees' health, improved working conditions,
and enhanced their quality of life to build trust and commitment to the
Company:

- The average income reached 17.25 million VND/person/month,
achieving 136% of the annual plan and increasing by 19% compared to the same
period last year.

- Paid special attention to improving healthcare services for employees by
organizing regular health check-ups, in-depth medical examinations, and
ensuring quality healthcare. Provided health insurance for 100% of employees
working at the Company.

- Additionally, employees were provided with nutritious drinks such as
Bird’s Nest, Cordyceps, etc., to improve health, restore labor capacity, and
received gifts in kind during holidays and festivals.

6. Safety Assurance and Fire Prevention

Effectlvely organized the management and protection of assets; implemented
0ccupat1ona1 safety, industrial hygiene, and fire prevention measures; ensured the
safety of warehouses, equipment, and products; and maintained food safety and
hygiene across units.

7. Financial Operations

- Units completed financial settlement procedures on schedule as required.

- Effectively managed cost control, debt recovery, and ensured cash flow for
the Company's production and business activities.

8. Procurement of Materials for Production and Business Activities

Purchased and stored raw materials at reasonable prices, reduced costs, and
contributed to improving the Company's production and business efficiency.

9, Other Activities

- Successfully organized the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders and
the Employee Conference in 2024.

- Successfully organized programs commemorating the 62nd anniversary

of President Ho Chi Minh's visit to the Company and the Company's production

anniversary.
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- Fulfilled national defense and security duties: The Company's Military

Command carried out military-defense tasks and provided military training for
the self-defense force in strict compliance with the regulations of higher-level

military authorities.

- Completed all reporting requirements on production, business,
construction investment, finance, and science and technology in accordance with
the requirements of the Vietnam National Chemical Group and state

management agencies.

- Cooperation between units within the Group has been favorable and
gradually become a cultural characteristic of the enterprise. In 2024, transactions
between Lam Thao Fertilizers and Chemicals Joint Stock Company and other
units within the Group exceeded 730 billion VND, contributing to the internal
consumption of the Group's products.
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PART II
DIRECTIONS AND TASKS FOR PRODUCTION AND BUSINESS
OPERATIONS IN 2025

I. Situation Assessment
It is forecasted that in 2025, the global and domestic fertilizer market will

become increasingly complex. To stabilize production and business activities
under the new circumstances, the Company will base its business plan on the
actual market situation. Priority will be given to enhancing the marketing of new
Lam Thao fertilizer products and focusing on developing a range of
microbiological products and products containing Potassium sulfate (K>SOj) to
penetrate the market and gain the trust of farmers, alongside the Company’s
traditional fertilizers for maximum effectiveness. The Company will strengthen
and develop its brand through communication agencies, mass media,
agricultural specialty agencies, farmers, rural areas, and its distribution network.
Management efforts will be intensified, with ongoing research and application
of scientific and technological solutions in production to reduce material
consumption rates and lower product costs.
II- Business Production and Basic Construction Investment Plan for 2025
1. Business Production Plan
Based on the results of the 2024 business production plan, fluctuations in
the fertilizer market, and weather forecasts for 2025, the Company's Executive
Board directs departments to build the 2025 business production plan as follows:
1.1. Industrial production value (at actual prices): 3,801 billion VND, with
a total fertilizer output of 833,000 tons.
- Supe phosphate: 425,000 tons.
- NPK fertilizers: 400,000 tons.
- Organic-mineral fertilizers: 8,000 tons.
- Sulfuric acid: 145,000 tons.
1.2. Sales revenue and service provision: 3,545 billion VND, with a total
fertilizer consumption of 628,000 tons.

- Supe phosphate: 220,000 tons.
- NPK fertilizers: 400,000 tons.
- Organic-mineral fertilizers: 8,000 tons.
- Sulfuric acid: 1,500 tons.
1.3. Budget contribution: 63.431 billion VND.
1.4. Pre-tax profit: 205 billion VND.
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1.5. Basic construction investment: 124.141 billion VND.

1.6. Ensure sufficient employment for employees with stable income.
2. Basic Construction Investment: 124.141 billion VND
In which: - Construction: 38.459 billion VND
- Equipment: 71.212 billion VND
- Other costs: 14.470 billion VND

Key Projects:

+ Ongoing Projects: SOP Production Line Project (20,000 tons/year); Sales
and Product Display Area Project; Circulating Pond Renovation Project; Gas
Storage Tank Procurement Project.

+ New Investment Projects: Office Building Construction Project; PAC
Production Line Project (10,000 tons/year); Sulfur Burning Furnace Renovation
(Axit Production Line 1); Contact Process Improvement Project; Flue Gas
Treatment System Renovation for Acid Production Lines; Technology
Upgrading and Supe Phosphate Production Line Renovation Project; Various
Equipment Procurement Projects.

III- Solutions for Implementing the 2025 Plan

I1I- Solutions for Implementing the 2025 Plan

1. Develop new fertilizer products suitable for various crops, derived from
K,S0,, which helps crops bloom and ripen early, enhances fruit sweetness and
color, and increases productivity and efficiency.

2. Manage and operate production activities at units according to current
standards, regulations, and procedures. Strengthen management, reduce costs,
ensure safe business operations, integrate environmental protection, and move
towards adopting modern, eco-friendly technologies.

3. Implement specialized production based on product lines at units to
increase labor productivity, improve product quality and appearance, and
enhance market competitiveness.

4. Organize market development and product consumption: expand
markets for new fertilizers, high-nutrient NPK fertilizers, organic mineral
fertilizers, and fertilizers containing microorganisms in Central, Central
Highlands, and Southern regions; gradually promote direct fertilizer export.

5. Effectively implement investment programs: invest in the K,SOs
production line, develop science and technology to meet the Company's growth
needs, ensure safety in production and business operations (capital safety, food
safety, fire and explosion prevention, etc.); mechanize loading, unloading, and
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transportation of raw materials and products to save time and labor; complete

experimental garden construction; build new sales stations.

6. Organize workforce training and arrangement: streamline and optimize
labor force allocation to be suitable and efficient. Implement electronic
timekeeping to ensure transparency, stabilize employment, and improve both the
material and spiritual well-being of employees.

7. Strengthen asset, material, and product management; maintain
inventory at reasonable levels to reduce costs; actively recover debts to ensure
cash flow for business operations.

8. Promote emulation movements in production labor; encourage and
motivate all Company staff and employees to work enthusiastically, creatively,
and responsibly, contributing to the Company's sustainable growth.

9. Based on the 2024 business results and the 2025 objectives, employees
of Lam Thao Fertilizers and Chemicals Joint Stock Company will focus their
efforts on business production, investment development, and market expansion
to achieve the highest possible results and exceed the annual targets for 2025.

Recipients: GENERAL DIRECTOR

- Company's Board of Directors
- General Director (e-copy)
- Filed: KHVT, VT
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LAM THAO FERTILIZERS AND SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM
CHEMICALS JOINT STOCK COMPANY Independence - Freedom - Happiness
SUPERVISORY BOARD

Phu Tho, 25" February, 2025

REPORT OF THE SUPERVISORY BOARD
Submitted to the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders on April 22, 2025

- Pursuant to the Enterprise Law No. 59/2020/QH14 dated June 17, 2020,
of the National Assembly of the Socialist Republic of Vietnam;

- Pursuant to the functions, duties, and powers of the Supervisory Board as
stipulated in the Charter of Lam Thao Fertilizers and Chemicals Joint Stock
Company;

. The Supervisory Board respectfully reports to the Annual General
Meeting of Shareholders on the inspection and supervision activities of
Lam Thao Fertilizers and Chemicals Joint Stock Company in 2024 as
follows:

1. Activities of the Supervisory Board

Implementing the 2024 supervision and inspection plan of the Company's
Supervisory Board, the Supervisory Board held meetings, assigned tasks, and
carried out activities related to the establishment and implementation of
supervision and inspection of the management and operation of the Company's
production and business activities in 2024.

Specifically:

- Supervising the activities of the Board of Directors through the
implementation of the Resolutions of the General Meeting of Shareholders, the
Resolutions of the Board of Directors, and the Regulations and Decisions of the
Company issued by the Board of Directors. Reviewing the legality and
procedural order of issuing Resolutions and Decisions of the Company’s Board
of Directors;

- Supervising the activities of the Executive Board through the
implementation of the Resolutions of the General Meeting of Shareholders, the
Resolutions of the Board of Directors, the implementation of the 2024
production and business plan, and the Decisions of the General Director within
the scope of the General Director's authority to manage production and business
activities of the Company;

Regularly monitoring production and business activities through
documents, files, attending meetings of the Board of Directors, the Executive
Board, and providing the Supervisory Board's opinions on policies, plans, and
the implementation of production and business plans, as well as the publication

1
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of information as prescribed. Monitoring the implementation of quarterly and
annual production and business plans for 2024. Assessing the semi-annual and
annual financial statements for 2024;

Specialized supervision: Implementing the 2024 Supervision Plan of the
Supervisory Board of Lam Thao Fertilizers and Chemicals Joint Stock
Company. The Supervisory Board has conducted inspections related to the
conclusions and recommendations of the State Audit (KTNN) regarding the
management and use of state capital and assets in 2022 of the Company.

Implementation Content:

- The leadership and direction of the leadership team and the head of the
company in directing and managing the implementation of the State Audit’s
recommendations; compliance with the reporting timeline for the results of
implementing the State Audit’s recommendations.

- Inspection of the implementation of the State Audit’s recommendations as
stated in the Audit Report No. 53/TB-KTNN dated January 8, 2024.

Results:

- The leadership and direction of the leadership team and the head of the
company in directing and managing the implementation of the State Audit’s
recommendations.

+ The General Director of the Company has directed relevant departments,
divisions, and individuals to implement the State Audit’s recommendations and
reported the results to the Board of Directors.

+ The Board of Directors of the Company issued Resolution No. 26/NQ-
SPLT dated February 21, 2024 (Article 3) approving the contents of the
Proposal No. 22/TTr-TCKT dated February 20, 2024, regarding the
implementation of the State Audit’s recommendations.

+ Regarding compliance with the reporting timeline for the results of
implementing the State Audit’s recommendations, the Company issued Official
Letter No. 144/SPLT-TCKT dated February 21, 2024, to the State Audit and the
Vietnam National Chemical Group, reporting the implementation of the State
Audit’s recommendations as required in Audit Report No. 53/TB-KTNN dated
January 8, 2024.

- Inspection of the implementation of the State Audit’s recommendations as
stated in the Audit Report No. 53/TB-KTNN dated January 8, 2024.

The Company has recorded adjustment entries according to the conclusions
of the State Audit, retroactively applied to the 2022 accounting period, and the
adjusted figures are reflected in the 2022 Financial Statements. The contents of
the Audit Report No. 53/TB-KTNN dated January 8, 2024, have been strictly
implemented by the Company.

- During the process of inspection and supervision, the Supervisory Board

2



has made observations, evaluations, and recommendations to the Board of
Directors and the Executive Board to avoid risks, improve the efficiency of
production and business activities, and ensure compliance with legal regulations.

2. Monitoring Results of the Company’s Production and Business
Activities

Through the monitoring of the Company’s production and business
activities and the verification of the Company's consolidated audited Financial
Statements for the fiscal year 2024, the Supervisory Board has the following
assessments:

2.1. Regarding Production and Business Activities

- Challenges:

In 2024, the Company's production and business activities faced many
difficulties such as: Complex global political developments, wars and instability
in international relations, natural disasters like storms and floods, insufficient
supply of Apatite ore, and declining quality... all of which negatively affected
production and business operations.

- Advantages:

Thanks to the guidance and direction from various levels and sectors from
central to local authorities, the Vietnam National Chemical Group, and the trust
and loyalty of business partners. Additionally, the Company proactively
implemented solutions to flexibly manage production and business activities. It
carried out reasonable procurement of materials and supplies, actively and
decisively recovered debts, ensured asset safety, and maintained balanced cash
flow for production and business operations. Strict control over the production
process was enforced to ensure product quality. Investment in research and
production was made to launch new product lines to the market... thereby
gradually overcoming difficulties and maintaining the product consumption

market.
With its decisive and flexible management in production and business

operations, the Company's leadership successfully completed its production and

business tasks for 2024.
2.2. Appraisal of the Consolidated Financial Statements for 2024

- -+ Results of the Appraisal of the 2024 Financial Statements

Through the appraisal of the 2024 consolidated financial statements
(which have been audited), the Supervisory Board finds that the Company has
fully complied with the regulations in preparing the 2024 consolidated financial
statements. The consolidated financial statements accurately and reasonably
reflect, in all material aspects, the Company's financial position, business
performance, and cash flow situation for the year, in accordance with
Vietnamese accounting standards, corporate accounting regulations, and legal

.
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provisions related to the preparation and presentation of consolidated financial
statements.

The Company applies the Vietnamese Accounting Standards and the
Corporate Accounting System issued under Circular No. 200/2014/TT-BTC
dated December 22, 2014, by the Ministry of Finance guiding the Corporate
Accounting System, and Circular No. 53/2016/TT-BTC dated March 21, 2016,
by the Ministry of Finance amending and supplementing certain provisions of
Circular No. 200/2014/TT-BTC dated December 22, 2014.

The Company's Board of Management is responsible for ensuring that
accounting records are properly maintained to reasonably reflect the Company's
financial position at any given time and ensuring that the consolidated financial
statements comply with accounting standards, the Vietnamese corporate
accounting system, and relevant legal regulations concerning the preparation and
presentation of consolidated financial statements. The Board of Management is
also responsible for safeguarding the Company's assets and implementing
appropriate measures to prevent and detect fraud and other irregularities.

- After appraisal, the Supervisory Board agrees with the results of the
audited consolidated financial statements.

+ 2024 Business Production Results
- Some Key Financial Indicators:

No. Content Unit Result
| Reve'm.,le from Sales and Service VND 3.599.953,347.991
Provision

5 Profit After Corporate Income VND 168.674,268,388
Tax

3 Net Profit/Total Assets Ratio 0% 6.4

4 | Net Profit/Equity Ratio % 11.5

5 Net Profit/Net Revenue Ratio % 4.8

6 Basic Earnings per Share VND 1,345

2. Monitoring Results for the Board of Directors and Executive
Management

3.1. The Company's Board of Directors
The Board of Directors has fully fulfilled its management responsibilities
by complying with the Enterprise Law, the Securities Law, the Company's
Charter, the Resolutions of the General Meeting of Shareholders, and other legal
regulations. It has closely followed the strategic direction and, based on the
actual situation, provided accurate and timely decisions.
The Board of Directors has held meetings and issued Resolutions,
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Regulations, and Decisions in accordance with the Resolutions of the General
Meeting of Shareholders and the Company's management and governance
requirements.

The Board's Resolutions focus on directing the implementation of the
Company's business production plans and basic construction investment plans.
The procedures, content of meetings, and the Minutes, Resolutions, and
Decisions of the Board of Directors comply with the Enterprise Law and the
Company's Charter.

The Supervisory Board agrees with the assessment of the 2024 work
results as stated in the Board of Directors’ report.

3.2. CEO and Executive Board

+ The direction of implementing the production and business plan targets.

- Despite facing many difficulties in production and business, the CEO and
Executive Board have implemented various solutions to direct and manage
production and business activities, effectively carrying out the resolutions of the
General Shareholders' Meeting, the resolutions of the Board of Directors,
successfully completing the 2024 production and business plan, and ensuring
stable employment and income for employees.

Some key performance indicators of production and business activities:

No Indicator Y(‘::;'“zigi“ Y(i::;;lziglzl?, et M
VND) | VND) [ Amount [ p,
(million (%)
VND)
1 |Net revenue from sales| 3,465,765 | 3,440,291 | 25,474 0.7
and services
2 | Revenue from financial 31,694 14,399 | 17,295 120.1
activities
3 | Financial operating costs 17,637 20,436 | -2,799 -13.7
4 | Selling expenses 186,515 159,500 | 27,015 16.9
5 | Administrative expenses 246,560 210,303 | 36,257 17.2
6 | Total profit before tax 216,185 186,315 | 29,870 16.0
7 | Corporate income tax 47,511 37,777 9,734 237
expenses
8 | Profit after corporate 168,674 148,538 | 20,136 13.6
income tax

Thus, based on the data of the key financial indicators, it can be seen that in
2024, despite facing many difficulties, the company's leadership managed
production and business activities very effectively, exceeding the production and
business plan targets, and successfully implementing the resolutions set by the
company's General Shareholders' Meeting.

5
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+ Accounting and financial work

- In 2024, with the direct guidance from the Executive Board and the
efforts of the staff and specialists in the Finance and Accounting Department, in
coordination with the company's Business Department, the operational units
have effectively carried out the task of debt collection, with no bad debts or
overdue debts. The working capital loan repayment was smooth, ensuring
sufficient capital for production and business activities, and even generating idle
funds for short-term financial investments, contributing to increased profits for
the company.

- With its functions and responsibilities, the Finance and Accounting
Department has provided timely advice to the Executive Board on business
management decisions, prepared quarterly and annual financial reports on time,
in accordance with Vietnamese accounting standards and other regulations of
Vietnamese law;

- The management of revenue and expenditure complies with the financial
regulations. The data in the company's financial reports accurately and
reasonably reflects the company's financial situation as of December 31, 2024,
on key aspects.

+ Implementation of policies and benefits for employees

The company has ensured full compliance with the policies, rights, and
legal benefits for employees. Employees are cared for by the company in all
aspects of their physical and mental well-being (such as building spacious,
clean, modern dining rooms, bathrooms, and changing rooms; organizing annual
summer trips for employees; giving gifts in money and materials during
holidays, New Year, and birthdays...). Through these specific and practical
actions, the company has strongly motivated and encouraged employees' sense
of responsibility and creative labor spirit in their work. Activities related to
emulation, rewards, as well as sports, cultural, and artistic movements, have
always been supported by the leadership, creating a joyful and energetic
atmosphere in production, which has contributed to improving labor efficiency
and productivity across the company.

+ Implementation of the audit regime

Based on the list of auditing companies approved at the 2024 Annual
General Shareholders' Meeting, the company has selected Vietnam Auditing and
Valuation Co., Ltd. (VAE) as the unit approved by the State Securities
Commission to conduct the 2024 audit for public-interest organizations in the
securities field, including the audit of the company's semi-annual and annual
financial statements for 2024.

4. The coordination between the Supervisory Board, the Board of
Directors, and the Executive Board
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With a high sense of responsibility in their work, the Supervisory Board
always coordinates closely, exchanges, and contributes ideas with the Board of
Directors and the CEO regarding matters within their authority during meetings.

" The Supervisory Board is provided with all resolutions, decisions of the
Board of Directors, regulations, and decisions from the CEO, and always
receives support and facilitation from the units and functional departments
within the company in providing documents and materials for audit and control
work.

5. Shareholders' opinions

In 2024, the Supervisory Board did not receive any opinions or feedback
from the shareholders regarding the company's production and business
activities.

6. The Supervisory Board comments and makes recommendations

6.1. Comments:

- Through monitoring the company’s governance and business activities,
and reviewing the company’s semi-annual and annual financial reports, the
Supervisory Board evaluates as follows:

The company’s production and business situation in 2024 showed good growth.

+ The revenue from sales and services in 2024 was VND 3,599.95 billion,
reaching 105.9% of the plan and 100.7% compared to 2023.

+ Revenue from financial activities continued to achieve high levels, with
VND 31.69 billion in 2024, an increase of VND 17.29 billion, equivalent to a
120.1% increase compared to 2023, while financial operating costs were VND
17.63 billion, a decrease of VND 2.79 billion, equivalent to a 13.7% reduction
compared to 2023.

+ Selling expenses and administrative expenses increased compared to
2023 by 16.9% and 17.2%, respectively. The main reason is that the company
increased expenses for customer appreciation activities and bonuses to
encourage customers to meet and exceed the registered consumption target, raise
wages, and increase administrative costs to achieve high business efficiency.

+ The profit before tax in 2024 was VND 216.19 billion, achieving 158.9%
of the plan and increasing by 16.0% compared to 2023.

- The Supervisory Board did not find any irregularities in the company’s
business management activities. All activities of the Board of Directors and the
Executive Board throughout the year complied with the Law on Enterprises, the
Securities Law, the company’s charter, relevant regulations, and adhered to the
resolutions of the General Shareholders” Meeting;

- The company’s information disclosure activities also complied with
current regulations applicable to listed companies.

6.2. Proposals:



The Supervisory Board recommends that the Board of Directors and the
Executive Board of the company:

- Continue to monitor the collection of bad debts (existing from previous
periods).

- Continue to strengthen management measures to ensure safety in
production and the environment.

- Accelerate the progress of projects according to the approved plan, and
complete the final settlement in accordance with regulations for projects that
have been completed, as well as for projects that are stopped or not being
implemented.

The above is the content of the Supervisory Board's report on monitoring
the company's production and business activities in 2024, presented to the 2025
Annual General Shareholders' Meeting.

On behalf of the Supervisory Board, I sincerely thank the Board of
Directors, the Executive Board, the relevant departments, and our valued
shareholders for their continued support, which has enabled the Supervisory
Board to successfully carry out its duties.

Thank you, respecfully!

Recipients: ON BEHALF OF THE SUPERVISORY BOARD
- Shareholders of the company; : &=

- Board of Directors, Executive
Board of the company;

- Filed: Supervisory Board of the company;
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LAM THAO FERTILIZERS AND
CHEMICALS JOINT STOCK COMPANY SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETP{AM
Independence - Freedom - Happiness

SUPERVISORY BOARD

Phu Tho, 11" March, 2025

PROPOSAL
Regarding the selection of an independent auditing firm to audit the
company's financial statements for the year 2025.

To: The 2025 Annual General Shareholders' Meeting
Lam Thao Fertilizers and Chemicals joint stock Company

- Pursuant to the Enterprise Law No. 59/2020/QH14 dated June 17,
2020, of the National Assembly of the Socialist Republic of Vietnam;

- Pursuant to the Securities Law No. 54/2019/QH14 dated November 26,
2019, of the National Assembly of the Socialist Republic of Vietnam,

- Pursuant to the Charter on the Organization and Operations of Lam
Thao Fertilizers and Chemicals Joint Stock Company;

- Pursuant to the Operational Regulations of the Supervisory Board of
Lam Thao Fertilizers and Chemicals Joint Stock Company,

The Supervisory Board respectfully submits to the General Shareholders'
Meeting for approval the selection of an independent auditing firm to review the
financial statements for the first 6 months and audit the financial statements for
the year 2025 of the company as follows:

1. Criteria for selecting an independent auditing firm

- The auditing firm must be an independent auditing company approved by
the State Securities Commission and the Ministry of Finance to audit public-
interest entities in the securities field for the year 2025.

- The auditing firm must be reputable, with a team of honest auditors who
uphold professional ethics, possess high qualifications, and have extensive
experience to ensure the quality, scope, and progress of the financial statement
audit.

- The auditing firm must offer reasonable audit fees that align with the
content, scope, and schedule of the audit.

2. List of proposed independent auditing firms for selection

The Supervisory Board proposes selecting two independent auditing firms
to review the financial statements for the first 6 months and audit the financial
statements for the year 2025 of the company as follows:

- Vietnam Auditing and Valuation Co., Ltd.

Address: 11th Floor, Song Da Building, No. 165, Cau Giay Street, Cau
Giay District, Hanoi City, Vietnam;

Phone; 0246 267 0491;




Approved by the State Securities Commission in Decision No. 1262/QD-
UBCK dated November 19, 2024, of the Chairman of the State Securities
Commission, to be an auditing organization and have licensed auditors to audit
public-interest entities in the securities field for the year 2025.

- AFC Vietnam Auditing Co., Ltd.
Address: 4th Floor, No. 44 Nguyen Cong Hoan, Ngoc Khanh Ward, Ba
Dinh District, Hanoi City, Vietnam;

Phone: 02438373666;

Approved by the State Securities Commission in Decision No. 1265/QD-
UBCK dated November 19, 2024, of the Chairman of the State Securities
Commission, to be an auditing organization and have licensed auditors to audit
public-interest entities in the securities field for the year 2025.

3. The Supervisory Board presents to the General Shareholders'
Meeting

- Approve the criteria and the list of the two auditing firms mentioned
above;

- Authorize the Board of Directors of the company to select one of the two
auditing firms to review the financial statements for the first 6 months of 2025
and audit the financial statements for the year 2025 of the company, and report
to the Annual General Shareholders' Meeting within the specified time frame.

We respectfully submit this to the 2025 Annual General Shareholders'
Meeting for approval.

Sincerely thank you./.

Recipients: ON BEHALF OF THE SUPERVISORY BOARD
SNl RS D HEAD OF THE SUPERVISORY BOARD

- Board of Directors, Executive
Board of the company; 400108 )
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- Filed: Supervisory Board of the company;
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LAM THAO FERTILIZERS AND SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM
CHEMICALS JOINT STOCK COMPANY [ndependence - Freedom - Happiness

No.: 37/TTr-HPQT-SPLT Phu Tho, April 8", 2025

PROPOSAL
Regarding the supplementation of the Company's business and manufacturing sectors

To: The General Meeting of Shareholders of Lam Thao
Fertilizers and Chemicals Joint Stock Company

- Pursuant to the Law on Enterprises No. 59/2020/QH14 dated June 17, 2020 of the
National Assembly of the Socialist Republic of Vietnam;

- Pursuant to the Law on Securities No. 54/2019/QH 14 dated November 26, 2019 of
the National Assembly of the Socialist Republic of Vietnam;

- Pursuant to Decree 01/2021/ND-CP dated January 4, 2021 on enterprise
registration,

- Pursuant to the Charter on the organization and operation of Lam Thao
Fertilizers and Chemicals Joint Stock Company;,

- Pursuant to Official Dispatch No. 549/HCVN-HDTV dated April 4, 2025 of
Vietnam National Chemical Group regarding the addition of business and
production sectors of Lam Thao Fertilizers and Chemicals Joint Stock Company;,

- Based on the Company’s current business and operational situation.

Based on the requirements of the Company's business operations and investment
strategy, and through a review of its current business lines, the Company is planning to
promote and strengthen the research and production of new fertilizer products. This will
be carried out by proactively organizing trials and tests of fertilizers produced by the
Company, with the aim of meeting market demands and aligning with the trend toward
green production — enhancing soil health, reducing emissions, and adapting to climate
change.

In order to achieve the goal of reducing costs associated with outsourcing fertilizer
trials and testing services, while also enabling the Company to be more proactive in terms
of timing and other favorable conditions when directly conducting such trials, the
Company seeks to create additional opportunities and advantages in its business
operations to promptly respond to current and future market trends and demands. The
Board of Directors (BOD) respectfully submits to the General Meeting of Shareholders
(GMS) for consideration and approval the proposal to add the following business and
production lines to the Company’s scope of activities:

L. ADDITION OF BUSINESS AND PRODUCTION LINES
1. Addition of the following business lines

No. Name of the business lines to be added

1. | Fertilizer testing and trials

2. | Fertilizer field testing




II. AMENDMENT AND SUPPLEMENTATION OF THE COMPANY CHARTER

The General Meeting of Shareholders approves the addition to the Company
Charter (specifically to Clause 1, Article 4 of the Company's business lines regulations),
provided that the Company fully meets the mandatory conditions as prescribed by law.
The specific addition is as follows:

- Fertilizer testing and trials
- Fertilizer field testing

The General Meeting of Shareholders authorizes the General Director and the
Legal Representative of the Company to sign and promulgate the Company Charter after
all mandatory conditions as prescribed by law have been fully met.

III. IMPLEMENTATION

The General Meeting of Shareholders assigns the Board of Directors and the
General Director of the Company to direct the relevant functional departments to
implement the procedures for adding the Company’s business and production lines,
including but not limited to the following tasks:

- Fully fulfill the necessary requirements regarding human resources and physical
infrastructure (materials, technical equipment, technology, etc.) to meet the mandatory
legal conditions for the operation and business of (1) fertilizer testing and (2) fertilizer
field testing;

- Approve the addition of the business lines (1) fertilizer testing and (2) fertilizer
field testing to the Company’s Charter on Organization and Operation after all
mandatory legal conditions have been met;

- Carry out all legal procedures related to the addition of business and production
lines with the competent State authorities;

- Prepare and submit licensing applications (if required) to the competent State
authorities for the business lines and sectors approved by the General Meeting of
Shareholders in this Proposal;

- Prepare and file for changes in the Business Registration Certificate and complete
registration procedures with the Department of Planning and Investment in
accordance with the law;

- Carry out other tasks related to the addition of the Company’s business lines in
compliance with legal regulations.

The Board of Directors respectfully submits this to the General Meeting of
Shareholders for consideration and approval.

Respectfully.
ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Recipients: CHAIRMAN
- As addressed above; 260010845

- Board of Directors, Supervisory
Board, Executive Board;

- To be filed: Board of

Directors, Archives.
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LAM THAO FERTILIZERS SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM
AND CHEMICALS JSC Independence - Freedom - Happiness
No.: 30 /TTr-HPQT-SPLT

Phu Tho, March 21, 2025

PROPOSAL
ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS 2025
Regarding the approval of the audited financial statements for 2024, the profit
distribution plan for 2024, the business plan for 2025, and the remuneration for the
Board of Directors and the Supervisory Board of the Company.

To: Annual General Meeting of Shareholders 2025
Lam Thao Fertilizers and Chemicals JSC

- Pursuant to the Law on Enterprises No. 59/2020/QH14 passed by the National
Assembly of the Socialist Republic of Vietnam on June 17, 2020, and its guiding
documents;

- Pursuant to the Law on Securities No. 54/2019/QH14 passed by the National
Assembly of the Socialist Republic of Vietnam on November 26, 2019, and its
guiding documents;

- Pursuant to the Charter on the organization and operation of Lam Thao Fertilizers
and Chemicals JSC.

The Board of Directors of Lam Thao Fertilizers and Chemicals JSC respectfully

submits to the 2025 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders for approval of the following
matters:

I

AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR 2024, PROFIT
DISTRIBUTION PLAN, AND FUND ALLOCATION FOR 2024

Audited Financial Statements for 2024:
The 2024 financial statements have been audited by Vietnam Auditing and Valuation

Company Limited (VAE) in accordance with applicable standards. They have been
reviewed by the Company's Supervisory Board and approved by the Vietnam National
Chemical Group. The Company has published the financial statements in compliance with
regulations, and they are also available on the website: www.supelamthao.vn.

The 2024 Consolidated Financial Statements include:

(1) Report of the Board of General Directors;

(2) Independent Auditor's Report;

(3) Consolidated Balance Sheet as of December 31, 2024;

(4) Consolidated Income Statement for the accounting period from January 1, 2024,
to December 31, 2024;

(5) Consolidated Cash Flow Statement for the accounting period from January I,
2024, to December 31, 2024;

(6) Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the fiscal year ending

1



December 31, 2024.
Including a summary of key indicators on business performance as follows:

Number Indicator Year 2024 (dong)
1 Revenue from sales of goods and services 3.599.953.347.991
2 Net revenue from sales of goods and services 3.465.765.583.539
3 Profit before tax 216.185.854.338
4 Profit after tax 168.674.268.388
5 Basic earnings per share 1.345,1
6 Contribution to the state budge 85.758.470.588
2. Plan for Profit Distribution, Fund Allocation, and Dividend Payment in 2024:
Number Indicator Year 2024 (dong)
1 Und-istributed profit from the previous year 23 506.630.056
carried forward
2 Profit after corporate income tax in 2024 168.674.268.388
3 Total undistributed profit (=1+2) 192.180.898.444
4 Fund allocations 33.734.853.678
Plan for Profit Distribution, Fund Allocation,
and Dividend Payment in 2024- Charter 0
capital reserve fund: 0%
- Reward and welfare fund: 10% of 2024 net 16.867 426.839
profit
- Development investment fund.: 10% of 2024 16.867.426.839
net profit
5 Executive management bonus 482.400.000
6 Rf.:rnuneration for non-executive Board of 959.000.000
Directors
7 Dividend distribution for 2024 135.427.680.000
- Cash dividend at 12% 135.427.680.000
3 Undistributed profit carried forward to the next 22.983.964.766
year

The General Meeting of Shareholders authorizes and assigns the Company's Board
of Directors to direct the Executive Board and relevant departments to carry out the
procedures for profit distribution, fund allocation, and dividend payment for 2024 to
shareholders in accordance with legal regulations and the Company's Charter.




II. BUSINESS PRODUCTION PLAN FOR 2025
The Board of Directors submits to the General Meeting of Shareholders for
consideration and approval of key indicators of the 2025 business production plan as

follows:

Number Indicator Value
1 Fertilizer Production Output 833.000 ton
2 Acid Production Output 145.000 ton
3 Revenue from Sales and Services 3.545 billion dong
4 Profit Before Tax 205 billion dong
5 Tax Payment to State Budget 63,431 billion dong

The General Meeting of Shareholders
authorizes the Board of Directors to
6 Dividend (%) determine and implement the interim

dividend payment for 2025 based on the

company's business performance

throughout the year.

The General Meeting of Shareholders authorizes the Company's Board of Directors
to direct the Executive Board and relevant departments to implement business operations;
determine the interim dividend payment rate for 2025 and carry out the procedures for
interim dividend payment to shareholders in accordance with the Company's business
performance in 2025.

III. REMUNERATION FOR THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS, BOARD OF
SUPERVISORS, CORPORATE GOVERNANCE OFFICER, AND
SECRETARIAT TEAM IN 2024, AND REMUNERATION PLAN FOR THE
BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND BOARD OF SUPERVISORS IN 2025.

1. According to the resolution of the 2024 Annual General Meeting of
Shareholders, the remuneration paid to members of the Board of Directors,
Board of Supervisors, Corporate Governance Officer, and Secretariat Team in

2024 was as follows:

: ’_I‘ota‘l
Num | Fall s Positi Remuneration for remuneration
ber i S 2024 (VND/month) for 2024
| | . (VND)
I | Bop 408.000.000
1 I;”;h Nguyen Quoc Plieman 8.000.000 | 96.000.000
2 ?{;g Pham  Thanh Mepiber 6.500.000 | 78.000.000
3 Mr. Tran Dai Nghia Member 6.500.000 78.000.000
4 Mr. Bui Son Hai Member 6.500.000 78.000.000
s | Ms. Nguyen Thuy Neniber 6.500.000 | 78.000.000
Duong




I Supervisory Board | 132.000.000

1 Mr. Do Van Tao Heatd of the Position-based
Supervisory Board allowance
2 Mr. Nguyen Van Tho Supervisor 5.500.000 66.000.000
3 Mr. Vi Hoang Son Supervisor 5.500.000 66.000.000
Company Secretary,
a1 | Corporate 95.332.000
Governance Officer '
4.000.000
Mr. Nguyen Quoc Corporate (from 01/01/2024 to
An Governance Officer; 10/7/2024)
L | (Dismissedfrom Head of the 5000000 | 28:666.000
August 1, 2024) Secretariat Team (from 11/7/2024 to
31/7/2024)
Mr. Nguyen Viet Corporate
Hung Governance Officer; 5.000.000
2| (4ppointed from Head of the (from 8202410 122024) | 2>-000.000
August 1, 2024) Secretariat Team
3.000.000
- - - (from 01/01/2024 to
IS. guyen 1 10/7/2024)
3 Thisy Ha Member 4.000.000 41.666.000
(from 11/7/2024 to
31/12/2024)
~ Total = 635.332.000

2. The remuneration plan for members of the Board of Directors and the

Supervisory Board in 2025 is as follows
2.1. The remuneration plan for members of the Board of Directors and the

Supervisory Board in 2025:

Number Position Salary (dong/month)
1 Chairman of BOD 8.000.000
2 | Member of BOD 6.500.000
3 Head of Supervisory Board ~ Position-based allowance
- Member of Supervisory Board 5.500.000

2.2. Implementation period: From January 1, 2025.
Respectfully submitted to the 2025 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders for

approval.
Sincerely./.
ON BEHALF OF BOD
= v Lo, SGHAIRMAN
- Shareholders; At
- BOD, SB, Executive Board

- For file: office, TTK. 1 —
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LAM THAO FERTILIZERS SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM
AND CHEMICALS JOINT Independence - Freedom - Happiness
STOCK COMPANY

No: 29 /TTr-HDQT-SPLT

Phu Tho, April 18*,2025

SUBMISSION
TO THE 2025 ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS

(Re: Election of Members to the Board of Directors and Supervisory Board for the 2025—
2030 Term)

- Pursuant to the Law on Enterprises No. 59/2020/QH14 passed by the National
Assembly on June 17, 2020,

_ Pursuant to the Law on Securities No. 54/2019/QH14 passed by the National
Assembly on November 26, 2019;

- Pursuant to Decree No. 155/2020/ND-CP dated December 31, 2020 of the
Government guiding the implementation of a number of provisions of the Law on

Securities;

- Pursuant to the Guidelines on the nomination and self-nomination of candidates
for the Board of Directors and Supervisory Board for the 2025-2030 term,

- Pursuant to Document No. 611/HCVN-HBTV dated April 10, 2025 from Vietnam
Chemical Group on nomination of personnel for election to the Board of Directors and
Supervisory Board for the 2025-2030 term;

- Pursuant to Resolution No. 43/NQO-SPLT dated April 18, 2025 of the Board of
Directors on personnel for election to the Board of Directors for the 2025-2030 term,

- Pursuant to Resolution No. 44/NQ-SPLT dated April 18, 2025 of the Board of
Directors on personnel for election to the Supervisory Board for the 2025-2030 term;

- Pursuant to the Company's Charter.

Dear Shareholders.

The term of the current Board of Directors and Supervisory Board of Lam Thao
Fertilizers and Chemicals Joint Stock Company (2020-2025) has ended. In accordance
with legal regulations and the Company’s Charter, the Board of Directors submits for
approval by the Annual General Meeting of Sharcholders 2025 the election of a new
Board of Directors and Supervisory Board for the 2025-2030 term as follows:

1.  Number of members of the Board of Directors (BOD) and Supervisory Board (SB)
for the 2025-2030 term:

- Number of BOD members: 05.
- Number of SB members. 03.
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2. Term duration: 05 years (2025-2030);

3. Approval of the list of candidates for election to the BOD and SB for the 2025-

2030 term:

Based on Document No. 611/HCVN-HDTV dated April 10, 2025 from Vietnam
Chemical Group; Resolution No. 43/NQ-SPLT and Resolution No. 44/NQ-SPLT dated
April 18, 2025 by the Board of Directors of Lam Thao Fertilizers and Chemicals Joint

Stock Company;

The AGM Organizing Committee has consolidated the list of candidates for

election as follows:

- List of candidates for election to the Board of Directors:

No. | Full name Address Proi.‘essm.nal Place of work, position
qualifications
Khuc Ngoc | Apartment A1409 — Hydraulic Deputy Head of the Investment
Giang Building A — No. 82 Engineer, and Construction Department of
Nguyen Tuan, Master of the Vietnam Chemical Group;
1 Thanh Xuan Trung | Construction Representative of the Group's
Ward, Thanh Xuan | Management | capital at Lam Thao Fertilizers
District, Hanoi City and Chemicals Joint Stock
Company
Pham Thanh House 1 Lot C, Chemlc'al Member of the Board of
Tung Chemical Area, ECOI’]IOH’IICS Directors, Representative of the
’ Alley 34, Nghia Do f/}lagsineer; Group's capital at the Company,
Street, Xuan La .er e General Director of Lam Thao
Ward, Tay Ho Bl.ls%ness. Fertilizers and Chemicals Joint
District, Hanoi City. Administration Stock Company
Bui Son Hai | TDP No. 12 Nhan Bachelor of Permanent Deputy Head of the
My, My Dinh 1 Economics Inspection Committee of the
Ward, Nam Tu Party Committee of the
Liem District, Hanoi Vietnam Chemical Group;
City Member of the Board of
3 Directors, Representative of the
Group's capital at the Company,
Deputy General Director of
Lam Thao Fertilizers and
Chemicals Joint Stock
Company
Tran Dai House No. 25, Master of Deputy Head of the Finance
Nghia Nguyen Quang Chemical and Accounting Department of
Thanh Street, Lam Technology the Vietnam Chemical Group;
% Thao Area, Lam Member of the Board of
Thao Town, Lam Directors, Representative of the
Thao District, Phu Group's capital at the Company,
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Tho Province

Deputy General Director of
Lam Thao Fertilizers and
Chemicals Joint Stock
Company

Nguyen Thi
Thuy Duong

Ward, Long Bien
District, Hanoi

Group 4, Ngoc Thuy

Bachelor of

Economics

Deputy Head of the Investment
and Construction Department of
the Vietnam Chemical Group;
Representative of the Group's
capital at Lam Thao Fertilizers
and Chemicals Joint Stock
Company

- List of candidates for election to the Board of Supervisors:

Professional
No. | Full name Address . ) Place of work, position
qualifications
Do Van Zone 5, Hung Son Bachelor of Head of the Board of
| Tao Town, Lam Thao Economics, Supervisors of Lam Thao
District, Phu Tho major in Fertilizers and Chemicals Joint
Province Accounting Stock Company
Vi Hoang Room 742, VP5 Bachelor of Deputy Head of Accounting
Son Apartment Building, Economics, Department, Finance -
Linh Dam Peninsula, major in Accounting Department of
) Hoang Liet Ward, Accounting - Vietnam Chemical Group;
Hoang Mai District, Auditing Member of the Board of
Hanoi City Supervisors of Lam Thao
Fertilizers and Chemicals Joint
Stock Company
Le Vinh Tho Son Town, Viet Engineer in Specialist of Planning -
Quang Tri City, Phu Tho Technical Materials Department of Lam
Province Control, Thao Fertilizers and Chemicals
. Master of Joint Stock Company
Business
Administration

Information on candidates for election to the Board of Directors and Supervisory
Board of the Company for the 2025-2030 term is disclosed in accordance with the

provisions of law and the Company's Charter.

The Company has published the regulations for the election of the Board of
Directors and Supervisory Board for the 2025-2030 term and sent them to the Company's

shareholders in accordance with the regulations.

3




The Company's Board of Directors respectfully submits them to the General

Meeting of Shareholders for approval.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD OF
DIRECTORS

Recipients:
- Shareholders;
- BOD, SB, Executive Board;
- Filing: Admin Office, HR Department,

Secretariat.




LAM THAO FERTILIZERS AND SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM
CHEMICALS JOINT STOCK COMPANY Independence - Freedom - Happiness

Phu Tho, 21°" March 2025

ELECTION REGULATIONS
BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND SUPERVISORY BOARD TERM 2025-2030
LAM THAO FERTILIZERS AND CHEMICALS JOINT STOCK COMPANY

- Pursuant to the Law on Enterprises No. 59/2020/QH14 passed by the National

Assembly on June 17, 2020;
- Pursuant to the Law on Securities No. 54/2019/QH14 passed by the National

Assembly on November 26, 2019;
- Pursuant to Decree No. 155/2020/ND-CP dated December 31, 2020, of the

Government detailing the implementation of certain provisions of the Law on

Securities,
- Pursuant to the Charter of Lam Thao Fertilizers and Chemicals Joint Stock

Company.

To guide shareholders in exercising their voting rights to elect members of the Board
of Directors (BOD) and the Supervisory Board (SB) for the 2025-2030 term of the
Company, the Board of Directors submits the Election Regulations to the General Meeting
of Shareholders for approval with the following contents:

ARTICLE 1: ELIGIBLE VOTERS

Shareholders holding voting shares and authorized representatives of shareholders
holding voting shares as of the Company's sharcholder record date (according to the
shareholder list finalized on March 14, 2025, by the Vietnam Securities Depository and

Clearing Corporation).

ARTICLE 2: CRITERIA AND CONDITIONS FOR MEMBERS OF THE BOARD
OF DIRECTORS AND MEMBERS OF THE SUPERVISORY BOARD

1. Criteria and Conditions for Members of the Board of Directors
As stipulated in Article 155 of the 2020 Law on Enterprises, Article 275 of
Decree 155/2020/ND-CP, and Clause 4, Article 25 of the Company's Charter.
- Must have full civil capacity and not be prohibited from establishing or managing
enterprises as prescribed by the Law on Enterprises.
- Must not simultaneously serve as a member of the Board of Directors in more than

five other companies.
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- Must have foresight, strategic planning capabilities, and management expertise.
Preference is given to candidates with experience in the company's field of operation.
- Must possess professional ethics, good health, strong moral character, honesty, and

legal knowledge.
- Must not have family relationships with the Director, General Director, or other
managers of the company, nor with managers or appointing authorities of the parent

company.
2, Independent Members of the Board of Directors

As stipulated in Clause 4, Article 276 of Decree 155/2020/ND-CP and Clause 3,
Article 26 of the Company's Charter.

The number of independent members of the Board of Directors of a listed company
must comply with the following regulations:
- At least one independent member if the Board of Directors has 3 to 5 members.
- At least two independent members if the Board of Directors has 6 to 8 members.
- At least three independent members if the Board of Directors has 9 to 11 members.

Conditions for Independent Members of the Board of Directors (as stipulated in
Clause 2, Article 155 of the 2020 Law on Enterprises):
- Must not be currently working for the company or its subsidiaries, and must not
have worked for the company, its parent company, or its subsidiaries for at least the past

three consecutive years.

- Must not receive a salary or remuneration from the company, except for
allowances granted to Board members as per regulations.

- Must not have a spouse, biological or adoptive parents, biological or adoptive
children, or siblings who are major shareholders of the company or who arec managers of

the company or its subsidiaries.
- Must not directly or indirectly own at least 1% of the total voting shares of the

company.
- Must not have been a member of the Board of Directors or the Supervisory Board
of the company for at least the past five consecutive years, except in cases of continuous

appointment for two consecutive terms.
3. Criteria and Conditions for Members of the Supervisory Board

As stipulated in Article 169 of the 2020 Law on Enterprises and Article 37 of the

Company's Charter:

- Must have full civil capacity and not be prohibited from establishing or managing
enterprises as prescribed by the Law on Enterprises.

- Must have training in one of the following fields: economics, finance, accounting,
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auditing, law, business administration, or a discipline relevant to the company's business
activities.

- Must not have family relationships with members of the Board of Directors, the
Director or General Director, or other managers.

- Must not be a company manager and is not required to be a shareholder or an
employee of the company.

- Must not have family relationships with managers of the company or its parent
company, representatives of enterprise capital, or representatives of state capital in the
parent company and the company.

- Must not work in the company's accounting or finance department.

- Must not be a member or employee of an independent auditing firm that audited the
company’s financial statements in the past three consecutive years.

ARTICLE 3: NOMINATION OF CANDIDATES FOR THE BOARD OF
DIRECTORS AND THE SUPERVISORY BOARD, AND THE NUMBER OF
ELECTED MEMBERS

1. Nomination and Candidacy for the Board of Directors and the Supervisory Board

(As stipulated in Clause 2, Article 25 and Clause 1, Article 36 of the Company's
Charter of Operations):
- Shareholders or groups of shareholders holding at least 10% of the total common
shares have the right to nominate candidates for the Board of Directors and the
Supervisory Board. Shareholders holding common shares may combine their voting rights
to nominate candidates for the Board of Directors and the Supervisory Board.
. Shareholders or groups of shareholders holding from 10% to less than 20% of the
total voting shares may nominate one (01) candidate; from 20% to less than 30% may
nominate up to two (02) candidates; from 30% to less than 40% may nominate up to three
(03) candidates; from 40% to less than 50% may nominate up to four (04) candidates;
from 50% to less than 60% may nominate up to five (05) candidates; from 60% to less
than 70% may nominate up to six (06) candidates; from 70% to 80% may nominate up to
seven (07) candidates; from 80% to less than 90% may nominate up to eight (08)
candidates.
- If the number of candidates for the Board of Directors/Supervisory Board nominated
and self-nominated remains insufficient, the incumbent Board of Directors and Supervisory
Board shall introduce additional candidates or organize nominations in accordance with the
Company's Charter, the Internal Corporate Governance Regulations, and the Board of
Directors' Operating Regulations. The nomination of additional candidates by the
incumbent Board of Directors and Supervisory Board must be clearly announced before the
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General Meeting of Shareholders votes to elect members of the Board of Directors and the
Supervisory Board, as required by law.

2. Number of Elected Members of the Board of Directors and the Supervisory
Board

The Charter of Lam Thao Fertilizers and Chemicals Joint Stock Company stipulates
that the Board of Directors consists of five (5) members, and the Supervisory Board consists
of three (3) members. The term of office for members of the Board of Directors and the
Supervisory Board is five years. Members of the Board of Directors and the Supervisory
Board may be re-elected for an unlimited number of terms.

The number of independent members of the Board of Directors must comply with
the provisions of Clause 3, Article 26 of the Company's Charter. Members of the Board of
Directors are not required to hold shares in the Company.

The Board of Directors proposes the number of members for the Board of Directors
and the Supervisory Board for the 2025-2030 term for approval by the General Meeting of
Shareholders, followed by the election process in accordance with:

- Number of Board of Directors members: 05 members
- Number of Supervisory Board members: 03 members
- Term of the Board of Directors and Supervisory Board: 05 years (2025-2030)

ARTICLE 4: NOMINATION AND CANDIDACY DOCUMENTS AND LIST
COMPILATION

1. Nomination and Candidacy Documents
The nomination and candidacy documents for election to the Board of Directors and

the Supervisory Board include:

- Application for candidacy or nomination to the Board of Directors or Supervisory
Board (as per the attached form); or a meeting minutes document (if a group of
shareholders is nominating a candidate);

- Self-declared information form.

- A copy of the ID card/Citizen ID card and any diplomas or certificates proving
educational and professional qualifications (if applicable);

Z. Deadline and Submission Address for Nomination and Candidacy Documents

Shareholders or groups of shareholders eligible for candidacy and nomination must
submit written nominations and applications for candidates who meet the
qualifications for the Board of Directors and the Supervisory Board to the company
by 4:00 PM on April 17, 2025, to complete the necessary procedures as required.
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Documents should be submitted to the following address:

Lam Thao Fertilizers and Chemicals Joint Stock Company

- Address: Phuong Lai Area, Lam Thao Town, Lam Thao District, Phu Tho Province.
Phone: 0210.3825.139 (Ext: 3246) Fax: 0210.3825.126

o Compilation of the List of Candidates

Based on the candidacy and nomination applications submitted by shareholders and
shareholder groups, along with the accompanying documents, the Board of Directors will
compile and approve a list of candidates who meet the required qualifications. This list will
be presented to the General Meeting of Shareholders for approval before the election of the
Board of Directors and the Supervisory Board.

- Only nomination or candidacy documents that meet all requirements, and candidates
who fulfill the necessary qualifications for Board of Directors and Supervisory Board
membership, will be included in the official list announced at the General Meeting.

ARTICLE 5: ELECTION METHOD

- The election of members to the Board of Directors and the Supervisory Board shall
be conducted by secret ballot using the cumulative voting method, as stipulated in Clause
3, Article 148 of the 2020 Enterprise Law:

"3. Unless otherwise stipulated in the company's charter, the election of
members to the Board of Directors and the Supervisory Board must be conducted
using the cumulative voting method. Accordingly, each shareholder has a total
number of voting rights equal to the total number of shares they own multiplied by
the number of members to be elected to the Board of Directors or the Supervisory
Board. Shareholders may allocate all or part of their total votes to one or multiple
candidates. Candidates elected to the Board of Directors or as Supervisors are
determined based on the number of votes received, ranked from highest to lowest,
until the required number of members specified in the company's charter is reached.
If two or more candidates receive the same number of votes for the final available
position on the Board of Directors or the Supervisory Board, a re-election will be
held among the tied candidates, or the selection will be made based on the criteria
specified in the election regulations or the company s charter."

- Each shareholder has a total number of voting rights equal to the number of voting
shares they own (including shares held directly and those authorized) multiplied (X) by the
number of Board of Directors/Supervisory Board members approved by the General
Meeting of Shareholders. Shareholders may choose one of the following two voting

methods:



+ Direct Voting Method: Shareholders write the number of voting rights directly in the
"Number of Votes" column corresponding to the candidates they choose. The
number of votes allocated to each candidate may vary depending on the
shareholder’s or authorized representative’s preference for each candidate. The total
number of votes cast for all candidates must not exceed the shareholder’s or
representative’s total voting rights.

+ Marking Method: Shareholders mark (X or V) in the "Equal Distribution" box. In
this case, the shareholder's total voting rights will be evenly distributed among the
selected candidates.

Note: Shareholders may choose only one of the two methods to complete their ballot
for electing members of the Board of Directors and the Supervisory Board. If a shareholder
or authorized representative uses both methods simultaneously, the ballot will be deemed

invalid.

ARTICLE 6: CASES OF INVALID BALLOTS

- Ballots that do not follow the company’s prescribed format.

- Ballots that are altered or include names of individuals outside the list of
candidates approved by the General Meeting of Shareholders before voting.

- Ballots in which the total number of votes cast for candidates exceeds the total
number of votes the shareholder owns/is authorized to vote.

- Ballots that vote for more candidates than the number of Board of Directors or
Supervisory Board members approved by the General Meeting.

- Ballots where the shareholder uses both voting methods.

- Ballots with erasures or corrections that do not bear the signature of the
shareholder/authorized representative next to the corrected section.

- Ballots submitted to the Vote Counting Committee after voting has ended and the
ballot box has been sealed.

ARTICLE 7: VOTE COUNTING COMMITTEE, VOTING PRINCIPLES, AND
VOTE COUNTING

o Vote Counting Committee
- The Vote Counting Committee is nominated by the Presidium and approved by the
General Meeting of Shareholders;
- Responsibilities of the Vote Counting Committee:

+ Distribute election ballots for the Board of Directors (BOD) and the Supervisory
Board (SB) to shareholders;

+ Guide shareholders on the voting process, how to fill out the ballots, and how to cast



their votes;
+ Conduct the vote counting for the BOD and SB elections;

+ Prepare the vote counting report and announce the election results to the General

Meeting.

- Members of the Vote Counting Committee must not be listed as nominees or
candidates for the BOD and SB for the 2025-2030 term.

&

o Principles of Voting and Vote Counting

- The Vote Counting Committee shall inspect the ballot box in the presence of
shareholders;

- The voting process begins once all ballots have been distributed and ends when the
last shareholder casts their vote into the ballot box;

- Vote counting must commence immediately after the voting process concludes;

- The vote count results must be documented in writing and announced by the Head
of the Vote Counting Committee at the General Meeting;

ARTICLE 8: PRINCIPLES FOR ELECTION OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND

SUPERVISORY BOARD MEMBERS

- Elected members of the Board of Directors and Supervisory Board are determined
based on the number of voting rights from highest to lowest, starting with the candidate
receiving the most votes until the approved number of members is reached;

- In case two or more candidates for the Board of Directors or Supervisory Board
receive the same number of votes for the final position, a runoff election will be held among

those candidates to determine the winner.

ARTICLE 9: PREPARATION AND ANNOUNCEMENT OF THE VOTE
COUNTING RECORD

- After the vote counting, the Vote Counting Committee must prepare the Vote
Counting Record.

- The content of the Vote Counting Record includes: the total number of
shareholders attending the meeting, the total number of shareholders participating in the
voting, the percentage of total votes cast by shareholders compared to the total voting
rights of attending shareholders, the number and percentage of valid votes, invalid votes,
and abstentions, as well as the total number of votes for each candidate for the Board of
Directors and the Supervisory Board.

- The full text of the Vote Counting Record must be announced before the General

Meeting of Shareholders.



PIEU 10: IMPLEMENTATION PROVISIONS

- Complaints regarding the election and vote counting will be resolved by the
Chairperson of the General Meeting of Sharcholders and recorded in the minutes of the
meeting.

- This regulation consists of 10 articles and will be publicly read before the General
Meeting of Shareholders for voting approval. It takes effect immediately upon approval and
applies only to the election of the Board of Directors and the Supervisory Board for the
2025-2030 term.
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LAM THAO FERTILIZERS AND SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM
CHEMICALS JSC Independence - Freedom - Happiness

No.: 31 /2025/HDQT-LAS

Phu Tho, March 21, 2025

GUIDELINES FOR NOMINATION AND CANDIDACY FOR THE ELECTION OF
MEMBERS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND THE SUPERVISORY BOARD
TERM 2025-2030

- Pursuant to the Enterprise Law No. 59/2020/QH14 passed by the National Assembly

on June 17, 2020;
- Pursuant to the Securities Law No. 54/2019/QH 14 passed by the National Assembly

on November 26, 2019;
- Pursuant to Decree No. 155/2020/ND-CP dated December 31, 2020, of the
Government detailing the implementation of certain provisions of the Securities Law;

- Based on the Charter of Lam Thao Fertilizers and Chemicals Joint Stock Company.

The Board of Directors of Lam Thao Fertilizers and Chemicals Joint Stock
Company hereby notifies the esteemed shareholders of the regulations on nomination
and candidacy for the election of Members of the Board of Directors and Members of

the Supervisory Board for the 2025-2030 term as follows:

I. STRUCTURE OF BOD AND THE SB FOR THE TERM:
- Number of Board of Directors members: 05 members

- Number of Supervisory Board members: 03 members

- Term duration of BOD and SB: 05 years, since 2025 to 2030.

II. CRITERIA AND CONDITIONS FOR NOMINATION AND CANDIDACY
FOR THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS (BOD)

1. Criteria for Members of the Board of Directors (BOD):

As stipulated in Article 155 of the Law on Enterprises 2020, Article 275 of Decree
155/2020/NP-CP, and Clause 4, Article 25 of the Company's Charter.

A member of the Board of Directors must:

- Have full civil capacity and not be prohibited from establishing or managing

enterprises under the Law on Enterprises.

~ Not concurrently serve as a member of the Board of Directors of more than five




other companies.

- Have a long-term vision, strategic planning ability, and management expertise.
Preference will be given to candidates with experience in the company's
industry.

- Possess professional ethics, good health, integrity, and knowledge of the law.

- Not have family relations with the Director, General Director, or other company
managers, as well as with managers or appointing authorities of the parent
company

2. Independent Members of the Board of Directors (BOD):

As stipulated in Clause 4, Article 276 of Decree 155/2020/ND-CP and Clause 3,
Article 26 of the Company's Charter,

the number of independent BOD members in a listed company must comply
with the following requirements:

- At least one (01) independent member if the BOD has 03 to 05 members.
- At least two (02) independent members if the BOD has 06 to 08 members.
- At least three (03) independent members if the BOD has 09 to 11 members.

Conditions to be an Independent BOD Member (as per Clause 2, Article 155 of
the Law on Enterprises 2020):

- Must not currently work for the company or its subsidiaries and must not have
worked for the company, its parent company, or its subsidiaries for at least the
last three (03) consecutive years.

- Must not receive salaries or remuneration from the company, except for
allowances received as per BOD regulations.

- Must not have a spouse, father, mother, child, sibling who is a major
shareholder, manager of the company, or a manager of the company's
subsidiaries.

- Must not directly or indirectly own at least 1% of the total voting shares of the
company.

- Must not have been a BOD member or a Supervisory Board member of the
company for at least the last five (05) consecutive years, except in the case of
continuous appointment for two consecutive terms

3. Criteria for Members of the Supervisory Board (SB):
As stipulated in Article 169 on 2020 Enterprises Law and Article 37 of the



Company's Charter.
A member of the Supervisory Board must:

Having full civil capacity and not be prohibited from establishing or managing
enterprises under the Law on Enterprises.

Having a background in economics, finance, accounting, auditing, law, business
administration, or another field relevant to the company's business activities.

Not having family relations with members of the Board of Directors (BOD), the
Director or General Director, or other managers.

Not being a company manager; not necessarily a shareholder or an employee of
the company.

Not having family relations with business managers of the company and its
parent company; representatives of state capital at the parent company and at the
company.

Not working in the accounting or finance department of the company.

Not being a member or employee of an independent auditing firm that has
audited the company’s financial statements in the last three (03) consecutive

years

Conditions for Candidacy and Nomination of Candidates for Election to the
Board of Directors (BOD) / Supervisory Board (SB)

(4s stipulated in Clause 2, Article 25, and Clause 1, Article 36 of the Company's
Charter)

Shareholders or groups of shareholders holding 10% or more of the total
ordinary shares have the right to nominate candidates for the Board of Directors
and the Supervisory Board. Shareholders holding ordinary shares have the right
to combine their voting rights to nominate candidates for the BOD and SB.

Shareholders or groups of shareholders holding from 10% to less than 20% of
the total voting shares may nominate one (01) candidate, from 20% to less than
30% may nominate up to two (02) candidates, from 30% to less than 40% may
nominate up to three (03) candidates, from 40% to less than 50% may nominate
up to four (04) candidates, from 50% to less than 60% may nominate up to five
(05) candidates, from 60% to less than 70% may nominate up to six (06)
candidates, from 70% to 80% may nominate up to seven (07) candidates, from
80% to less than 90% may nominate up to eight (08) candidates

In cases where the number of nominated and self-nominated candidates for the



BOD/SB is still insufficient, the current Board of Directors and Supervisory
Board shall introduce additional candidates or organize nominations in
accordance with the Company’s Charter, the internal corporate governance
regulations, and the operational regulations of the Board of Directors. The
introduction of additional candidates by the current BOD and SB must be clearly
announced before the General Meeting of Shareholders votes to elect members
of the BOD and SB, in accordance with legal regulations.

III. NOMINATION AND CANDIDACY DOCUMENTS FOR ELECTION TO
THE BOD AND SB

The nomination and candidacy documents for election to the Board of Directors
(BOD) and the Supervisory Board (SB) include:

- Application for candidacy or nomination for the BOD or SB (as per the attached
template); or Meeting minutes (if a group of shareholders nominates a
candidate);

- Self-declared information form;

- A copy of the ID card/Citizen Identification Card and diplomas, certificates
proving educational background and professional qualifications (if applicable).

IV. SELECTION OF CANDIDATES

Based on the candidacy and nomination applications submitted by shareholders,
shareholder groups, and the accompanying documents of the candidates, the Board of
Directors (BOD) will compile and approve a list of candidates who meet the required
qualifications as per the regulations. This list will be presented to the General
Meeting of Shareholders for approval and election to the BOD and Supervisory
Board (SB)

Only nomination or candidacy applications that meet all conditions, and
candidates who fully satisfy the requirements for BOD and SB membership, will be
included in the official list of candidates announced at the General Meeting of

Shareholders.

V. DEADLINE AND ADDRESS FOR SUBMISSION OF NOMINATION
AND CANDIDACY DOCUMENTS:

The Board of Directors respectfully requests that eligible shareholders or shareholder
groups submit nomination or candidacy documents for individuals who meet the
qualifications for BOD and SB membership. The documents must be submitted to the
company before 4:00 PM on April 17, 2025, to complete the necessary procedures in
accordance with regulations to the Submission address:



- Lam Thao Fertilizers and Chemicals Joint Stock Company
- Address: Khu Phuong Lai, Lam Thao Town, Lam Thao District, Phu Tho
Province, Vietnam

- Phone: 0210. 3825 139 (Ext: 3246) Fax: 0210. 3825 126

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD OF

he co PHAN
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SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM
Independence - Freedom - Happiness

CANDIDACY APPLICATION
BOARD OF DIRECTORS / SUPERVISORY BOARD TERM 2025-2030
LAM THAO FERTILIZERS AND CHEMICALS JOINT STOCK COMPANY

To: Lam Thao Fertilizers and Chemicals Joint Stock Company

A TS o eeereeeeeee e ettt e e e e eeeee eeeeeeeeeeeeeaa———aes teeeeeetetba———eettees eetbba—aeseettnnn———. serennrraaeeeeeetartannnrrannns
PHGTIEY ...oerensossusnnmsonsnssnsssssssstosssissssssimissnssssssssssisimis s ssisiaiaiss s B s i s

Currenfly holding) wewwrvamrmensmmssmsmsmssmssmavssssase shares

I hereby request to apply for candidacy for the position of .........cccooevivniniiiiiin at Lam
Thao Fertilizers and Chemicals Joint Stock Company for the 2025-2030 term during the 2025
Annual General Meeting of Shareholders.

K being elected ag a member ol cussnusasssnsisvemno by the shareholders, I pledge to devote
my full capabilities and commitment to contributing to the development of Lam Thao Fertilizers
and Chemicals Joint Stock Company.

Sincerely./.

date...... monthg ...... year 2025

Candidate
(Signature and Full name)

..............

Attachec documnets:
- Ban cung cép thong tin tu khai Self-declared information form;

- Copy of ID Card/Citizen Identification Card.
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SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM
Independence - Freedom - Happiness

NOMINATION FORM FOR CANDIDATE
BOARD OF DIRECTORS / SUPERVISORY BOARD TERM 2025-2030
LAM THAO FERTILIZERS AND CHEMICALS JOINT STOCK COMPANY

To: Lam Thao Fertilizers and Chemicals Joint Stock Company

Individual/Organization: ...... ...ccoccveieririins ceeirieieerie et eereeieesestesbeteses cereeseeseseseesastesersesaesans
ID Card/Citizen ID/Business Registration No.: ................... .Date of Issue:.........Place of Issue:
SIS cmmunsaurssmavas sz s TR TS VA A 5
PRONE: e
CRITEnS ORI s S e S shares

Requesting Lam Thao Fertilizers and Chemicals Joint Stock Company to nominate:

BRI «ocavmensnvssmmannninomssas sz s e et e A A A A A
ID Card/Citizen ID NO.: covveeeeeeeveevviieees e Date of ISSUE: covveveieeees e, Place of Issue;

Currently owWning: w.veswesssemisssssi shares

IR 7 SRS )
As acandidate fOT coovmnnee e Lam Thao Fertilizers and Chemicals Joint Stock

Company for the 2025-2030 term at the 2025 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders.

Sincerely./.
.............. date ...... month ...... year 2025

Nominee Shareholder
(Sign and write full name) (Sign and write full name, stamp if applicable)
Attached document:

- Self-declared information form;
- Copy of ID Card/Citizen ID.



SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM
Independence - Freedom - Happiness

-----000-----

NOMINATION APPLICATION BY GROUP
BOARD OF DIRECTORS / SUPERVISORY BOARD TERM 2025-2030
LAM THAO FERTILIZERS AND CHEMICALS JOINT STOCK COMPANY

Today,dated [ 2028, AL........cccmimisisisssssoisisssssiasonins
Group Shareholder Representative NamE: ... ...coociiiiiiiiiiiiis vt e saessaeeas
ID Card/Citizen ID/Business Registration No.: .........ccc ... .Dateof Issue:.........Place of Issue:
i 1. L
PRIGIIBT sussusssssivivmsivmsumssanasvonsomsesssonesamsmssss st s s s S e s s s SAwA R R A s
Being the authorized representative of the group of shareholders of Lam Thao Fertilizers and
Chemicals Joint Stock Company, currently holding: ...........cccoceiiins shares, with a total number

of voting shares of LAS, as listed below:

ID Card/Citizen
Shareholders ID/Business Adress
Registration No.

Number of
shares owned

Total

Agreeded to nominate:
e e 0 s e e A
ID Card/Citizen IDNo.: ..............c........... . Date of Issue:....Place of Issue........ccccoouerriiicnninns

PermAnEIt AQGIESS & vovveeevreees corrveeeeserseeessases sessssesssssassssssssss sessssssesesssssasesess sososssanssesssssassssssassnssas
PormaAn eIt A QIS wonrieeeiieies oeeeetssesessssseaseees aaeesessnnsssrennraees saeeessssnsensusrnrnans seenussseiitibissasrntrreresnnns

Currently owWning: ........cccceevveivvinennn shares

(5 WOTEE? 1.vsrunmsesensssssississssunas Bisssses s ssuissussssssss Hessess syass s saabe st se o ns s S Y aaae soamsnon S LIRS s RO AR RS SRR AR SS) )
As a candidate TOr .uueereeeveeeeeeeiieeeeie e e e e e Lam Thao Fertilizers and Chemicals Joint Stock

Company for the 2025-2030 term at the 2025 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders.

Sincerely./.

Nominee Representative of Shareholder Group
(Sign and write full name) (Sign and write full name, stamp if applicable)



Attached document:
- Self-declared information form;
- Copy of ID Card/Citizen ID.



12,

13.
14.

15.
16.

CONG HOA XA HOI CHU NGHIA VIET NAM
Poc lap - Tu do - Hanh phic
THE SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM
Independence - Freedom - Happiness

00o
........... ngay thang nam 2025

.......... day.... month.... year... .....

BAN CUNG CAP THONG TIN/ CIRRICULLUM VITAE
(Ban hanh kém theo Théong twe 96/2020/TT-BTC ngay 16/11/2020 cia Bé Truong Bé tai chinh)

(Promulgated with the Circular No 96/2020/TT-BTC on November 6, 2020
of the Minister of Finance)

Ho va tén/Full name:

Gidi tinh/Sex:

Ngay thang nam sinh/Date of birth:
Noi sinh/Place of birth:

S6 CMND (ho#ic s& hd chiéu)/ID card No. (or Passport No.):.............. Ngay cdp/Date of
ISSUE. .. vvveevenrinaninns Noi cép/Place of issue..............cece...

Quéc tich/Nationality:

Dan tdc/Ethnic:

Dia chi thuong trii/Permanent residence:
Sé dién thoai/Telephone number:
Dia chi email/Email:

Tén td chic 1a déi twong cong bd thong tin/Organisation’s name subject to information
disclosure rules:

Chic vu hién nay tai td chuc la ddi tugng cong bd thong tin/Current position in an
organization subject to information disclosure:

Céc chirc vu hién dang nam gir tai to chirc khac/Positions in other companies:

+ Pai dién (tén td chte 1a Nha nuée/cd dong chién luge/td chie khac) sé hiru:/Owning on
behalf of (the State/strategic investor/other organisation):

+ C4 nhén s& htru/Owning by individual:
Cac cam két ndm giit (néu c6)/Other owning commitments (if any):

Danh sach nguoi c6 lién quan cua ngudi khai*/List of affiliated persons of declarant:

* Nguoi ¢6 lién quan theo quy dinh tai khoan 46 Diéu 4 Luét Chimg khoan ngay 26 thang 11 ndm 2019/
Affiliated persons are stipulated in Article 4, clause 46 of the Law on Securities dated 26™ Nov 2019.
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17/ Loi ich lién quan d6i véi cong ty dai ching, quy dai chung (néu co)/Related interest
with public company, public fund (if any):

18/ Quyén loi méu thuin véi cong ty dai ching, quy dai ching (néu co)/Interest in conflict
with public company, public fund (if any):

Téi cam doan nhitng 101 khai trén day la dung su that, néu sai toi xin hoan toan chiu trach
nhiém trudc phap luat/I hereby certify that the information provided in this CV is true and

correct and I will bear the full responsibility to the law.

NGUOI KHAV/
DECLARANT
(Ky, ghi rd ho tén)
(Signature, full name)
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